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NOTICE TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Notice is hereby given that the 29th Annual General Meeting ofthe shareholders of Cochin Minerals

and Rutile Limited will be held on Monday, the 10th September, 2018 at 9.30 A .M. at the

Priyadarshini Municipal Town Hall, Thottakkattukara, Aluva, Emakulam District, Kerala to

transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Adoption ofAccounts

To receive, consider and adopt the audited accounts ofthe Company for the financial year ended

31st March 2018 together with Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report, thereon.

2. Appointment of Directors

To appoint Directors in place of Shri. Mathew M Cherian and Smt. Jaya S Kartha who

retire by rotation and being eligible, have offered themselves for reappointment and

in this connection:

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification the following resolutions

as ordinary resolutions :-

(a) “RESOLVED that the retiring Director Shri. Mathew M Cherian be and is hereby reappointed
as Director of the company subject to retirement by rotation.”

(b) “RESOLVED that the retiring Director Smt. Jaya S Kartha be and is hereby reappointed as

Director of the company subject to retirement by rotation.”

By Order of the Board

Sd/-

Place : Aluva Dr. S.N. Sasidharan Kartha,

Date : 28.07.2018 Managing Director.
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Notes:

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED

TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE IN THE MEETING INSTEAD

OF HIMSELF/HERSELF, AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE

COMPANY.

THE INSTRUMENT APPOINTING THE PROXY, DULY COMPLETED, MUST BE

DEPOSITED AT THE COMPANY’S REGISTERED OFFICE NOT LESS THAN 48

HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENCEMENT OF THE MEETING.

A PERSON CAN ACT AS PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING

50 AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF

THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS.

A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE

CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A

SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS PROXY

FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER.

Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend

the meeting are requested to send a certified copy of Board resolution authorizing the

representative to attend and vote at the meeting on their behalf.

Members/Proxies should bring the duly filled up attendance slip to attend the meeting.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain

closed from 4th September, 2018 to 10th September, 2018 (both days inclusive)
as per Clause 16 of the Listing Agreement.

Members are requested to address all correspondence including change of address

and dividend matters to the Registrars and share Transfer agents of the company,

M/s S K D C Consultants Ltd., Kanapathy Towers, 3rd Floor, 1391/ A, Sathy Road,

Ganapathy, Coimbatore - 641 006.

Members who wish to claim dividends, which remain unclaimed , are requested
to correspond with Company Secretary/Share Transfer Agents of the Company.
Members are requested to note that in terms of Section 124 (5) of the Companies

Act, 2013 dividends not claimed within seven years from the date of transfer to

the Company’s Unpaid Dividend Account, as per the Companies Act, will be

transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund of the Central Government

and no claim shall lie against the fund. The particulars of unclaimed/unpaid
dividends declared from financial year 2010-2011 are given below:
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Financial Year ended Date of Declaration Last date for claiming
31 st March

2011 2608.201 1 25.08.2018

2012 06.07.2012 05.07.2019

2013 09.07.2013 08.07.2020

2014 07.07.2014 06.07.2021

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Brief resume, details of shareholding and Directors inter-se relationship of Directors

seeking election/ re-election as required under Schedule V of the Listing Agreement
entered into with Stock Exchange, are provided as Annexure to this notice.

As per the green initiative taken by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the shareholders

are advised to register their e-mail address with the company in respect of shares held

in physical form and with concerned Depository Participant in respect of shares held

in electronic form to enable the Company to serve documents in electronic form.

A member who need any clarification on accounts or operations of the Company
shall write to the Company Secretary, so as to reach him at least 7 days before the

meeting, so that the information required can be provided.

Members are requested to bring their copy of Annual Report with them to the

Annual General Meeting.

Electronic copy of the Annual Report and AGM Notice are being sent to all the

members whose E-mail id is registered with the Company/Depository participants,
unless any such member has requested for a hard copy of the same. For members

who have not registered their E-mail ID, physical copies of Annual Report and

AGM Notice for the year 2017-18 are sent through the permitted mode separately.

The notice of the Annual General Meeting and this communication are also available

on the website of the company www. cmrlindiacom

The results of remote e-voting and voting by Ballot at the Annual General Meeting
will be announced at the Registered Office of the Company, by the Chairman of the

Company or by a Person authorized by him within 48 hours of conclusion of the

Annual General Meeting. A copy of the same will be posted in the company’s website:

www.cmrlindiacom and a copy will be forwarded to the Bombay Stock Exchange
Ltd. where the shares of the Company are listed.
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Voting Through Electronic Means

In compliance with the provisions of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of

the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 44(1) of the SEBI

(LODR) Regulations, the Company is pleased to provide members facility to exercise their votes

for all the resolutions detailed in the Notice of the 29th Annual General Meeting scheduled to be

held at 9.30 A M on Monday, the 10th September, 2018, by electronic means and the business

may be transacted through remote e-voting. The Company has engaged the services ofCDSL as the

authorised agency to provide the remote e-voting facilities. The instructions for remote e-voting

is provided below.

Members, who have not voted through remote e-voting and present at the AGM in person or proxy,

can vote through the ballot conducted at the AGM. Kindly note that members can opt for only one

mode ofvoting i.e.
,
either by remote e-voting or by ballot at the AGM. A member present at the AGM

and voted by remote e-voting will not be permitted to vote at the AGM by Ballot.

Votes cast by members who hold shares on the cutoff date viz. 03.09.2018 alone will be counted.

Instructions for shareholders Voting Electronically are as under:

(i) The remote e-voting period begins at 09.00 AM on 7th September 2018 and ends at 05.00

PM on 9th September, 2018. During this period shareholders of the Company, holding

shares either in physical form or in electronic form, as on the cut-off date of3rd September,

2018, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL

for voting thereafter.

(ii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.cvotingindiacom

(iii) Click on Shareholders.

(iv) Now Enter your User ID

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

c. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with

the Company.

(v) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login

(vi) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.cvotingindiacom and

voted on an earlier voting of any company, then your existing password is to be used.

(vii) Ifyou are a first time user follow the steps given below:

For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable

for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders) Members who have not
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updated their PAN with the Company/ Depository Participant are requested to use the

sequence number provided at the attendance slip enclosed in the PAN field.

DOB Enter the Date ofBirth as recorded in your demat account or in the company records

for the said demat account or folio in dd/mm/yyyy format.

Dividend

Bank details Enter the Dividend Bank Details as recorded in your demat account or in the company

(viii)

(iX)

(X)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(XV)

(xvi)

records for the said demat account or folio. Please enter the DOB or Dividend Bank

Details in order to login. Ifthe details are not recorded with the depository or company

please enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as

mentioned in instruction (iv).

After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection

screen. However, members holding shares in electronic form will now reach ‘Password

Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the

new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for

voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that

company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share

your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the

resolutions contained in this Notice.

Click on the EVSN for the Company Name, choose COCHIN MINERALS AND RUTILE

LIMITED to vote.

On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the

option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies

that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” ifyou wish to view the entire Resolution details.

After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation

box will be displayed. Ifyou wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your

vote, click on “cancel” and accordingly modify your vote.”

Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your

vote.

You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print”

option on the Voting page.
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(xvii) If Demat account holder has forgotten the changed password then enter the User ID and the

image verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the

system.

(xviii) Note for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian

are required to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates

and custodians respectively

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should

be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com

After receiving the login details a compliance user should be created using the admin login

and password. The Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for which they

wish to vote on.

The list ofaccounts should be mailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval

of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power ofAttorney (POA) which they have

issued in favour ofthe Custodian, ifany, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system

for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

(xix) Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for android

(1)

based mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. iPhone and

Windows phone users can download the app from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store

respectively on or after 7th September, 2018. Please follow the instructions as prompted by

the mobile app while voting on your mobile.

In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked

Questions (“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help

section or write an e- mail to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

Annexure to Notice ofAGM

Profile of Directors seeking Re-appointment/Election(Pursuant to Schedule V of Listing

Agreement)

Shri. Mathew M Cherian

Shri. Mathew M Cherian, is a promoter of the Company. A Diploma holder in Hotel

Management from the Institute of Hotel Management & Catering, Bombay, Mr. Cherian is

engaged in Hotels, Restaurants, export, import and international trade. He is also the Chairman

and Managing Director of Naduvile Idom Hospitality Private Limited.

Membership in Committees : 1

Shareholding in the company as on 13.07.2018 : 784080 Nos.
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(2) Smt. Jaya S Kartha

Smt. Jaya S. Kartha, a Post Graduate is the Wife of Dr. S. N. Sasidharan Kartha, Managing
Director. She is also the promoter of the Company and is the director of M/s Empower
India Capital Investments Pvt. Ltd. and has considerable experience in business.

Membership in Committees : l

Shareholding in the Company : 386740 Nos.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your Directors are pleased to present the 29th Annual Report ofyour Company along with audited

statements of accounts for the year ended 31st March 2018.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

? in Lakhs

Year ended 31St Year ended 31St

March 2018 March 2017

Sales and Other Income 16505.88 14962.27

Profit before Interest & Depreciation 855.98 (75.28)

Interest 569.33 637.68

Depreciation 68. 57 90.21

Net/ Profit/(Loss) for the year 218.08 (803.17)

Provision for Tax - —

Deferred tax asset (liability) 84.15 (230.45)

Profit/(Loss) after tax 133.93 (572.72)

Appropriations NIL NIL

DIVIDEND

Since the company did not generate sufficient profit during the year, your Directors do not

propose to recommend a dividend for the financial year ended 31st March, 2018.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management Discussion and Analysis of the Working Results for the year and outlook for the

current year are given as Annexure VII

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

As per the provisions ofthe Companies Act, 2013, your directors Shri. Mathew M Cherian and

Smt. Jaya S Kartha who retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting and being eligible,
offer themselves for reappointment. During the year, Mr. Anand Sarma, nominated to the Board

by K S I D C Ltd. ceased to be a director with effect from Ist February 2018, on withdrawal

of nomination and Shri. R Ravichandran, Deputy General Manager, Kerala State Industrial

Development Corporation Ltd. was appointed as Nominee Director ofK S I D C from the same

date.

There was no change in Key Managerial Personnel.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The independent directors have submitted declarations that each ofthem meets the criteria of

independence as provided in Section 149 (6) of the Act and that there has been no change in

the circumstances which may affect their status of independence.
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DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT & REMUNERATION POLICY

The Company’s Policy relating to appointment of Directors, payment of Managerial

remuneration, Directors’ qualifications, positive attributes, independence ofDirectors and other

related matters as provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 is filmished in

Annexure II.

ANNUAL EVALUATION

The board of directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board

committees and individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the corporate

govemance requirements under SEBI Listing Regulations 2015. The evaluation was on

the basis of inputs from all the directors on criteria such as Board composition and structure,

effectiveness of board processes, meeting procedures and functioning, etc. A meeting of

independent Directors, evaluated the performance of non-independent directors, the board as

a whole and that of the Chairman, taking into account the views of executive directors and

non-executive directors. These evaluations were considered and discussed in the subsequent
board meeting/s.

CSR INITIATIVES

The report on Corporate Social Responsibility activities in terms of Rule 8 of the Companies

(CSR) Rules, 2014 is given in Annexure - III .

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board regularly consider and evaluate the risks factors and take appropriate risk mitigation

steps from time to time.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT

The company has formed an anti sexual harassment policy in line with the requirements of

the Sexual Harassment of Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act

2013 and an internal complaints committee has been set up to redress complaints, if any. No

complaint was received by the committee during the year 2017-18.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION

186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The particulars of loans, guarantees and investments have been disclosed in the financial

statements.

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

None ofthe transactions with related parties falls under the scope of Section 188(1) ofthe Act.

Information on transactions with related parties pursuant to Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read

with rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in Annexure IV in Form

AOC-2.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The details in respect of internal financial control and their adequacy are included in the

Management Discussion & Analysis, which forms part of this report.
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DEPOSITS FROM PUBLIC 

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public and as such, no amount on account 
of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of the balance 
sheet. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS 

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred 
between the end of the financial year to which this report relates and on the date of this report 

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your directors 
state that: 

(a) In preparing the Annual Accounts for the year ended 31.03.2018, the applicable accounting 
standards have been followed and there are no material departures 

(b) The Directors had selected such Accounting Policies and applied them consistently and 
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit 
or loss of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

(c) The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets 
of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities. 

(d) That the Directors had prepared the accounts on a going concern basis 

(e) The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and 
that such controls are adequate and operating effectively and 

(f) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

AUDITORS & AUDIT REPORT 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(2) of the Companies Act 2013, M/s A K Muralee 
& CO., Chartered Accountants, Edappally, was appointed in the 28th AGM as Statutory Auditor 
of the Company to hold office for a period of 5 years and then continue in office. The report of 
the auditor for the current year does not contain any qualification or adverse comments. 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

The Secretarial audit report in terms of section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 is attached. 
The report does not contain any qualification or adverse comments. 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

The extract of annual return for the year ended 31.03.2018 in the prescribed form MGT-9 is 
given in Annexure V. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The composition and details of meetings of the audit committee are included in the corporate 
governance report. There was no recommendation of the audit committee that was not accepted 
by the board. 
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MEETING OF THE BOARD 

Five meetings of the Board were held during the year. Details are included in the corporate 
governance report 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES ETC. AS PER SECTION 197(12) 

The particulars in terms of Section 197 read with Rule 5(1) & (2) of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)Rules 2014 are given in annexure VI 

DISCLOSURES NOT APPLICABLE AS THERE WAS NO TRANSACTION OR INCIDENCE 
DURING THE YEAR : 

(i)Issue of equity shares with differential rights (ii)Issue of shares to employees (iii)Remuneration 
received by the Managing Director and whole time directors from subsidiaries (iv)Orders passed 
by regulators, courts or tribunals that impact the going concern status and future operations of 
the company (v) changes in subsidiaries and (vi) changes in nature of business . 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Your company has complied with all the conditions of corporate governance regulations, as 
contained in the revised Chapter IV of SEBI (Listing obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015. The corporate governance report and the certificate from the auditors 
regarding the compliances are annexed to this report as Annexures VIII & IX. The report 
includes the details of the familiarisation programme for Independent Directors and the policies 
adopted viz. whistle blower policy to provide vigil mechanism, and related party transactions. 

ISO CERTIFICATION 

Your Company has now been granted ISO 9001 : 2015 by the prestigious agency, Bureau 
Veritas, with accreditation from UKAS London and NABCB, India. 

N S F CERTIFICATION 

Your company's products, Ferric Chloride and Ferrous Chloride have got NSF/ANSI Standard 60 
certification for drinking water treatment chemicals from M/s N S F International, organization 
designated as a Collaborating Center by the World Health Organization (WHO) for both food 
safety and drinking water safety and treatment. 

STATUTORY APPROVALS & LICENCES 

The Company has renewed all statutory approvals and licences from various Departments/ 
Authorities for carrying on its normal business. The licenced and installed capacity of 
Synthetic Rutile production now stands at 50,000 MT per annum. 

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

The Labour - Management relations have been cordial and a long term agreement with Trade 
Unions of the Employees, valid till March 2020 is in force. 

ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

The details/information in respect of conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign 
exchange earnings and outgo in terms of R. 8 (3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules are given 
in the Annexure I. 
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DEMATERIALISATION 

The shares of your Company are compulsorily dematerialised for trading. The ISIN number 
of the shares is INE105D01013. 

The shares of your Company are listed with Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. The listing fee 
as required has already been paid upto and including the year 2018-19. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

Your Directors wish to place on record their deep sense of gratitude to the Banks and Financial 
Institutions, Central and State Government Departments and local authorities for their co-
operation and support. Your directors are also grateful to the customers, suppliers and business 
associates for their co-operation. Your directors also like to place on record their appreciation 
of the valuable contribution made by the employees of the company at all levels. Finally, your 
directors are deeply grateful to the members for their continued confidence and faith in the 
management of the company. 

LISTINGS 

Place: Aluva, 
Date : 28.07.2018 

For and on behalf of the Board, 
Sd/-

R.K.Garg, 
Chairman. 
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Annexure - I to the Directors' Report 
Statement containing particulars pursuant to Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 
forming part of the Directors Report. 
(A) Statement for Conservation of Energy 

Sl. No. Particulars Related disclosures 

(i) steps taken or impact on conservation of 
energy 

Energy audit conducted and its suggestions 
were implemented. Power factor main-
tained at 0.99 by maintaining adequate 
quantity of capacitors in the electrical cir-
cuit. Similarly through efficient manage-
ment of the operations, raw water intake 
reduced substantially. Transparent roofing 
and cladding sheets ensure natural lighting 
inside factory, natural draught fans and so-
lar lamps reduced energy consumption. All 
these efforts impacted reduction in Energy 
consumption per MT of SR to 148 Kwh 
during current Financial Year from 153 
Kwh in previous year 

(ii) steps taken by the company for utilising 
alternate sources of energy 

Maintained transparent roof/cladding sheets 
in plants and godowns, Natural draught, 
exhaust fans in godowns, Biogas plant for 
canteen waste treatment, solar lamps for 
emergency lighting. 

(iii) capital investment on energy conserva­
tion equipments 

-

(B) Technology absorption, 

Sl. No. Particulars Related disclosures 

(i) the efforts made towards technology ab-
sorption 

Upgraded and fine tuned the process condi-
tions and application parameters of Buff TiO2 
for coatings and polymers (ii) Ferric Chloride 
in drinking water purification (iii) Cemox for 
Iron Ore pellets. Recovered upgraded Ilmen-
ite used for welding electrodes and ferro ti­
tanium industries and Rutoweld, a substitute 
for Natural Rutile for weld flux formulation 
were developed utilising different streams of 
by-products in the factory. Laboratory scale 
production process for pure TiO2 and pure 
Iron Oxide pigments are developed. 

(ii) Benefits derived like product improve­
ment, cost reduction, product develop­
ment, import substitution etc 

Product improvement in the case of Buff 
TiO2 pigment, product development in case 
of upgraded Ilmenite and Rutoweld. In­
creased sale of all these items. 
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(iii) In case of imported technology (import-
ed during the last three years reckoned 
from the beginning of the financial year) 

No imported technology is used in the com-
pany 

(a) Details of technology imported Not applicable 

(b) the year of import ?? 

(c) whether the technology been fully ab­
sorbed 

?? 

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where ab-
sorption has not taken place, and the 
reasons thereof 

Rs. In Lakhs 

(iv) Expenditure on R&D Capital Expenditure NIL 

Revenue 94.19 

Total 94.19 

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo 

(1) Foreign Exchange Earned th rough exports US $ 243,46,364.00 

(2) Foreign Exchange outgo dur ing the year US $ 64,85,484.00 
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Annexure II 

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY 

PREFACE 

In furtherance of the philosophy and commitment of the company - (a) to consider human resources 
as its greatest assets, (b)to pay equitable remuneration to all Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 
(KMP) and employees of the Company, (c)to harmonize the aspirations of human resources consistent 
with the goals of the Company and (d)to comply with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
the listing agreement as amended from time to time - this policy on nomination and remuneration of 
Directors, Key Managerial and Senior Management personnel has been formulated by the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board of Directors. 

OBJECTIVES 

The main objectives of the policy are: 

(a) To lay down criteria and terms and conditions with regard to identifying persons who are 
qualified to become Directors (Executive and Non-Executive) and persons who may be 
appointed in Senior Management and Key Managerial positions. 

(b) To lay down guidelines to determine remuneration based on the Company's size and financial 
position and trends and practices on remuneration prevailing in similar companies. 

(c) To carry out evaluation of the performance of Directors, as well as Key Managerial and senior 
management personnel. 

(d) To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented 
managerial personnel and create competitive advantage. 

(e) To formulate appropriate incentive schemes linked to performance. 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

This policy has been effective from 1 s t April, 2014. 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

A) Membership 

- the committee shall consist of a minimum of 3 non-executive directors, the majority of them 
being independent. 

- membership of the committee shall be disclosed in the Annual report. 

- the term of the committee shall continue unless terminated by the board. 

B) Chairperson 

The chairperson of the committee shall be an independent director. 

C) Constitution 

The Board has changed the nomenclature of the Remuneration Committee by renaming it 
as Nomination and Remuneration Committee and reconstituted it with the following Non 
Executive Directors as members: 
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1. Shri. R. K. Garg, Chairman (Independent) 

2. Shri. A.J. Pai, Member (Independent) 

3. Shri. G.R. Warrier, Member (Independent) 

DEFINITIONS 

Board means Board of Directors of the Company. 

• Directors means Directors of the Company. 

• Committee means Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as 
constituted or reconstituted by the Board. 

• Independent Director means a director referred to in Section 149 (6) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

• Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) means-

(i) Executive Chairman and / or Managing Director, Jt. Mg Director 

(ii) Whole-time Director; 

(iii) Chief Financial Officer; 

(iv) Company Secretary; 

(v) Such other officer as may be prescribed under the applicable statutory provisions / 
regulations. 

• Senior Management means personnel of the Company occupying the position of Chief 
Executive Officer (CEO)/General Manager of any unit / division and unless the context 
otherwise requires, words and expressions used in this policy and not defined herein but 
defined in the Companies Act, 2013 as may be amended from time to time shall have the 
meaning respectively assigned to them therein. 

APPLICABILITY 

The Policy is applicable to 

• Directors (Executive and Non Executive) 

• Key Managerial Personnel 

• Senior Management Personnel 

MATTERS TO BE DEALT WITH, PERUSED AND RECOMMENDED TO THE BOARD BY 
THE NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

The Committee shall: 

• Formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a 
director. 

• Identify persons who are qualified to become Director and persons who may be appointed in Key 
Managerial and Senior Management positions in accordance with the criteria laid down in this 
policy. 



C O C H I N M I N E R A L S A N D RUTILE L IMITED 17 

* Determine remuneration for the whole-time directors, KMP and senior management personnel 

• Recommend to the Board, appointment and removal of Director, KMP and Senior Management 
Personnel. 

POLICY RELATING TO APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KMP AND 
SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 

Appointment criteria and qualifications: 

1. The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience 
of the person for appointment as Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend 
to the Board his / her appointment. 

2. The Board of the Company may consciously be drawn in a manner that at least one director from 
each of the following field is on the Board of the Company - Mineral processing, Banking and 
finance, Legal and general administration etc 

3. The appointment and reappointment of whole time directors shall be subject to the provisions of 
the Companies Act 2013 and rules framed there-under and the listing agreement. 

4. The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, KMP and Senior 
Management Personnel on annual basis. 

Removal: 

Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Companies Act, 2013, rules made thereunder 
or under any other applicable Act, rules and regulations, the Committee may recommend, to the Board 
with reasons recorded in writing, removal of a Director, KMP or Senior Management Personnel 
subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and regulations. 

Retirement: 

The Director, KMP and Senior Management Personnel shall retire as per the applicable provisions of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion 
to retain the Director, KMP, Senior Management Personnel in the same position / remuneration or 
otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company. 

POLICY RELATING TO THE REMUNERATION FOR THE DIRECTORS, KMP AND 
SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 

1. The remuneration / compensation / commission etc. to the Whole-time Directors, KMP and 
Senior Management Personnel will be determined by the Committee and recommended to 
the Board for approval, subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the rules made 
there under, wherever applicable and considering the financial position of the company and 
trends and practices on remuneration prevailing in the industry. 

2. The remuneration / commission to Non- Executive / Independent Directors shall be fixed as 
per the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under. 

REVIEW 

(i) The committee or the Board may review the Policy as and when it deems necessary. 

ii) This Policy may be amended or substituted by the committee or by the Board as and when required 
and also by the Managing Director to comply with any statutory changes 
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Annexure - III 
REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY ACTIVITIES 

(As per Rule 8 of Companies (CSR) Rules ,2014) 
1. A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programmes 

proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or 
programmes: 

CSR Policy is available on the web site of the company www.cmrlindia.com under 'Policies'. 

2. The composition of the CSR committee: The Company has a CSR committee of directors 
comprising of Mr. G R Warrier (Non-Executive Director) - Chairman 

3. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years for the purpose of computation 
of CSR: NIL - Based on last 3 years (average) loss, the company is not required to spend 
any amount. 

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above): NIL 

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year : 

a. Total amount spent for the financial year : NIL 

b. Amount unspent : Not applicable 

c. Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below: Not applicable 

6. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three 
financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the 
amount in its Board report. : Not Applicable 

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR 
policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the Company. 

We hereby declare that implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy are in compliance with 
CSR objectives and policy of the Company. 

Dr. S N Sasidharan Kartha (Managing Director) - Member 

Mr. Saran S Kartha (Joint Managing Director) - Member 

Date: July, 28, 2018 

(Sd/-) 

M.D 

(Sd/-) 

Chairman of CSR Commit tee 

http://www.cmrlindia.com
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Annexure - IV 
Form No. AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and 
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 
certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto: 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: 

Not entered into any contract or arrangement or transaction with its related parties which is not 
at arm's length basis and in ordinary course of business during financial year 2017-18. 

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis: 

a. Sale of the land 

b. Nature of contracts / arrangements / transactions: As above 

c. Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions: Not Applicable 

d. Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any : 
Rs. 282.37 Lakhs 

e. Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 

Not applicable, since the contract was entered into in the ordinary course of business and on 
arm's length basis. 

f. Amount paid as advances, if any: Nil 

Aluva 
July 28, 2018 

On behalf of the Board of Directors, 
Sd/-

Chairman 
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Annexure - V 

Form No. MGT-9 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

as on the financial year ended on 31.03.2018 

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the 

Companies (Management and Administrat ion) Rules, 2014] 

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS 

i) CIN L24299KL1989PLC005452 

ii) Registration Date 18/08/1989 

iii) Name of the Company COCHIN MINERALS AND 

RUTILE LTD 

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Com­

pany 

Indian Non Government Company/Com­

pany l imited by shares. 

v) Address of the Registered office and 

contact details 

P B NO 73, VIII/224, 

MARKET ROAD ALWAYE PIN- 683101. 

Ph: 0484 2626789, Fax : 0484 2625674 

email : cmrlexim@cmrl india.com 

cmrlexim@dataone.in 

vi) Whether listed company Yes / No YES 

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of 

Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any 

SKDC Consultants Ltd. 

Kanapathy Towers, 3 r d Floor 

1391/ A - 1 , Sathy Road Ganapathy, 

Coimbatore - 641 006 

Tel: (0422)4958995, 2539835-836 

Fax: (0422)2539837 

E-mail : info@skdc-consultants.com 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

All the business activities contr ibut ing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be 

stated:-

Sl 

No. 

Name and descript ion of main 

products/services 

NIC code of the prod­

ucts/Service 

% to total turnover of the 

company 

1 Synthetic Rutile 13209 90.25% 

mailto:cmrlexim@cmrlindia.com
mailto:cmrlexim@dataone.in
mailto:info@skdc-consultants.com
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III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES - Nil 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 

i) Category-wise Share Holding 

Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the end of the year % Change 

Shareholders beginning of the year duringthe 

year 

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares 

Demat Physical Total % of 
Total 
Shares 

% of 
Total 
Shares 

A. Promoters 

(1) Indian 

a) Individual/HUF 2700476 0 2700476 34.489 2724970 0 2724970 34.802 0.313 

b) Central Govt 

c) State Govt 1050000 0 1050000 13.410 1050000 0 1050000 13.410 0.000 

d) Bodies Corp. 337285 0 337285 4.308 354007 0 354007 4.521 0.213 

e) Banks / FI 0.000 0.000 

f) Any Other.... 0.000 0.000 

g)Trusts 0 0 

Sub-total (A) (1) 4087761 0 4087761 52.207 4128977 0 4128977 52.733 0.526 

(2) Foreign 

a) Individuals (Non 
Resident Individuals/ 
Foreign Individuals) 

0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 0.000 

b) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 0.000 

c) Institutions 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 0.000 

d) Qualified Investor 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 0.000 

d) Any Other (Specify) 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 0.000 

Sub-total (A) (2):- 0 0 0 0.000 0 0 0 0.000 0.000 

Total shareholding of 
Promoter & Promoter 
Group (A) = (A)(1)+(A) 
(2) 

4087761 0 4087761 52.207 4128977 0 4128977 52.733 0.526 

B. Public Shareholding 

1. Institutions 

a) Mutual Funds /UTI 0 8700 8700 0.111 0 5400 5400 0.069 -0.042 

b) Financial Institu­
tions/Banks 

242924 0 242924 3.102 93124 2600 95724 1.223 -1.879 

c) Central Govt /State 
Govts(s) 

d) Venture Capital 
Funds 
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e) Insurance Com­
panies 

f) Foreign Institutional 
Investors 

g) Foreign Venture 
Capital Investors 

h) Qualified foreign 
Investor 

i) Others (specify) 

FOREIGN PORTFOLIO 
INV (CORP.CAT ) 

Sub-total (B)(1):- 242924 8700 251624 3.213 93124 8000 101124 1.292 -1.921 

2. Non-Institutions 

a) Bodies Corp. 

i) Indian 169583 9550 179133 2.288 186117 6700 192817 2.463 0.175 

ii) Overseas 

b) Individuals 

i) Individual sharehold-
ers holding nominal 
share capital upto Rs. 
1 lakh 

1187056 616106 1803162 23.029 1173310 476829 1650139 21.073 -1.956 

ii) Individual 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal share 
capital in 
excess of Rs 1 
lakh 

1121707 68000 1189707 15.194 1210548 68000 1278548 16.329 1.135 

c) Others (Specify) 

NRI 210285 0 210285 2.686 227603 0 227603 2.907 0.221 

Clearing members 27508 0 27508 0.351 22492 0 22492 0.287 -0.064 

HUF 80820 0 80820 1.032 97782 0 97782 1.249 0.217 

Inv.Education and 
Protection Fund Auth. 

0 0 0 0.000 130518 0 130518 1.667 1.667 

Sub-Total (B)(2) 2796959 693656 3490615 44.580 3048370 551529 3599899 45.975 1.395 

Total Public Sharehold­
ing (B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2) 

3039883 702356 3742239 47.793 3141494 559529 3701023 47.267 -0.526 

C.Shares held by 
Custodian for GDRs 
& ADRs 

GRAND TOTAL 
(A)+(B)+(C) 

7127644 702356 7830000 100.000 7270471 559529 7830000 100.000 0.000 
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ii) Shareholding of Promoters 

Sl 
No. 

Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning of the 
year 

Shareholding at the end of the year 

No. of 
Shares 

% of total 
Shares of 
the com-
pany 

%of Shares 
Pledged / 
encum-
bered to 
total shares 

No. of 
Shares 

% of 
total 
Shares 
of the 
com-
pany 

%of 
Shares 
Pledged/ 
encum­
bered 
to total 
shares 

% 
change 
in 
share 
holding 
during 
the 
year 

1 Dr. S N Sasidharan Kartha 1338585 17.096 0.000 1354518 17.299 0.000 0.203 

2 Kerala State Industrial 
Development Corp. Ltd. 

1050000 13.410 0.000 1050000 13.410 0.000 0.000 

3 Mathew Cherian Mundanical 823150 10.513 0.000 823150 10.513 0.000 0.000 

4 Jaya S Kartha 386740 4.939 0.000 386740 4.939 0.000 0.000 

5 Sach Exports Private Ltd 251760 3.215 0.000 251760 3.215 0.000 0.000 

6 Saran Sasidharan Kartha 151701 1.937 0.000 158962 2.030 0.000 0.093 

7 Empower India Capital 
Investments 

85525 1.092 0.000 102247 1.306 0.000 0.214 

8 Jolly Cherian 300 0.004 0 300 0.004 0.000 0.00 

9 Nabiel Mathew Cherian 0 0 0 1300 0.017 0.000 0.017 

TOTAL 4087761 52.206 0.000 4128977 52.733 0.00 0.527 

iii) Change in Promoters' Shareholding ( please specify, if there is no change) 

Sl. 
No. 

Name Shareholding at the beginning 
ofthe year 

Date Increase/ 
decrease 

Reason Cumulative Shareholding dur­
ing the year 

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 
company 

No. of shares % of total 
shares of the 
company 

1 Dr. S N Sasidharan 
Kartha 

1338585 17.096 1/04/2017 1338585 17.096 

30/06/2017 1650 Bought 1340235 17.116 

07/07/2017 2136 1342371 17.143 

21/07/2017 1262 1343633 17.160 

28/07/2017 65 1343698 17.161 

25/08/2017 5160 1348858 17.226 

01/09/2017 5559 1354417 17.299 

08/09/2017 101 " 1354518 17.300 

End of the year 31/03/2018 0 0 1354518 17.300 

2 KSIDC Ltd 1050000 13.41 31/03/2018 No change 1050000 13.41 

3 Mathew M Cherian 823150 10.513 No Change 823150 10.513 

4 Jaya S Kartha 386740 4.939 Nochange 386740 4.939 
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5 Saran Sasidharan 
Kartha 

151701 1.937 01/04/2017 151701 1.937 

12/01/2018 5651 Bought 157352 2.010 

19/01/2018 3 " 157355 2.010 

26/01/2018 7 157362 2.010 

16/02/2018 220 " 157582 2.013 

02/03/2018 1380 158962 2.030 

31/03/2018 0 0 158962 2.030 

6 Nabiel Mathew 
Cherian 

00 0 00 00 

16/06/2017 100 Bought 100 0.001 

23/06/2017 150 " 250 0.003 

30/06/2017 800 1050 0.013 

28/07/2017 250 1300 0.017 

31/03/2018 1300 0.017 

7 Sach Exports Pvt Ltd 251760 3.215 No Change 251760 3.215 

8 Empower India 
Capital Investments 
P Ltd 

85525 1.092 01/04/2017 Bought 85525 1.092 

30/09/2017 1335 " 86860 1.109 

06/10/2017 3300 " 90160 1.151 

13/10/2017 4315 " 94475 1.207 

27/10/2017 220 " 94695 1.209 

03/11/2017 850 " 95545 1.220 

10/11/2017 2230 " 97775 1.249 

17/11/2017 1250 " 99025 1.265 

01/12/2017 20 " 99045 1.265 

08/12/2017 2972 " 102017 1.303 

22/12/2017 230 " 102247 1.306 

31/03/2018 0 0 102247 1.306 

9 Jolly Cherian 300 0.004 300 0.004 
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Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs): 

Name Shareholding at 
the beginning of 

Date Bought Sold Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

the year 

No. of % of No. of % of total 

shares total 
shares of 
the com-
pany 

shares shares of 
the com-
pany 

AWANTI KUMAR KANKARIA 346447 4.425 01/04/2017 346447 4.425 

17/11/2017 10000 336447 4.297 

24/11/2017 11500 324947 4.150 

19/01/2018 7500 317447 4.054 

31/03/2018 0 0 317447 4.054 

THE FEDERAL BANK LIMITED 242924 3.102 01/04/2017 242924 3.102 

07/04/2017 50000 192924 2.464 

14/07/2017 10000 182924 2.336 

01/09/2017 20000 162924 2.081 

31/10/2017 25000 137924 1.761 

17/11/2017 15000 122924 1.570 

19/01/2018 10000 112924 1.442 

09/03/2018 20000 92924 1.187 

31/03/2018 0 0 92924 1.187 

THE FEDERAL BANK LTD 0 07/04/2017 50000 50000 0.639 

14/04/2017 13950 36050 0.460 

21/04/2017 29241 6809 0.087 

28/04/2017 6809 0 

14/07/2017 10000 10000 0.128 

21/07/2017 3586 6414 0.082 

28/07/2017 1240 5174 0.066 

11/08/2017 2038 3136 0.040 

25/08/2017 3136 0 

01/09/2017 17000 17000 0.217 

08/09/2017 532 16468 0.210 

15/09/2017 16468 0 

31/10/2017 25000 25000 0.319 

03/11/2017 10597 14403 0.184 

10/11/2017 8000 6403 0.082 

17/11/2017 8597 15000 0.192 

24/11/2017 15000 0 

19/01/2018 10000 10000 0.128 

02/02/2018 7306 2694 0.034 
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09/02/2018 2694 0 

09/03/2018 20000 20000 0.255 

16/03/2018 13422 6578 0.084 

23/03/2018 6578 0 

SHASHANKSKHADE 166552 2.127 01/04/2017 166552 2.127 

19/05/2017 9000 175552 2.242 

02/06/2017 500 176052 2.248 

16/06/2017 2590 178642 2.282 

30/06/2017 1347 179989 2.299 

21/07/2017 6000 185989 2.375 

11/08/2017 1810 187799 2.398 

18/08/2017 6103 193902 2.476 

25/08/2017 3702 197604 2.524 

01/09/2017 1100 198704 2.538 

15/09/2017 6526 205230 2.621 

22/09/2017 7394 212624 2.716 

20/10/2017 1000 213624 2.728 

27/10/2017 2595 216219 2.761 

24/11/2017 1269 217488 2.778 

15/12/2017 1858 219346 2.801 

22/12/2017 2783 222129 2.837 

29/12/2017 13700 235829 3.012 

12/01/2018 5700 241529 3.085 

09/02/2018 10000 251529 3.212 

09/03/2018 2000 253529 3.238 

23/03/2018 6762 260291 3.324 

31/03/2018 0 0 260291 3.324 

ANIL ANANDA PANICKER 143772 1.836 01/04/2017 143772 1.836 

31/03/2018 0 0 143772 1.836 

JOHN MT 141501 1.807 01/04/2017 141501 1.807 

14/04/2017 300 141801 1.811 

28/04/2017 200 142001 1.814 

19/05/2017 468 142469 1.820 

02/06/2017 132 142601 1.821 

07/07/2017 400 143001 1.826 

11/08/2017 200 142801 1.824 

25/08/2017 45 142756 1.823 

15/09/2017 245 143001 1.826 

27/10/2017 500 142501 1.820 

03/11/2017 572 143073 1.827 
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10/11/2017 128 143201 1.829 

17/11/2017 1400 141801 1.811 

22/12/2017 200 142001 1.814 

12/01/2018 500 141501 1.807 

19/01/2018 2600 138901 1.774 

02/02/2018 300 139201 1.778 

16/03/2018 200 139401 1.780 

31/03/2018 400 139801 1.785 

C LOGANATHAN 39922 0.510 01/04/2017 39922 0.510 

19/05/2017 50 39872 0.509 

31/03/2018 0 0 39872 0.509 

CHINNASWAMY LOGANATHAN 32959 0.421 01/04/2017 32959 0.421 

31/03/2018 0 0 32959 0.421 

C LOGANATHAN 3311 0.042 01/04/2017 3311 0.042 

31/03/2018 0 0 3311 0.042 

JAPA INVESTMENT ADVISER LLP 61717 0.788 01/04/2017 61717 0.788 

31/03/2018 0 0 61717 0.788 

K. AJI 68000 0.869 01/04/2017 68000 0.869 

31/03/2018 68000 0.869 

Pramila Laxmichand Kenia 47500 0.607 01/04/2017 47500 0.607 

29/12/2017 2000 45500 0.581 

16/02/2018 45500 0 0 

JAGDISHWAR TOPPO 37814 0.483 01/04/2017 37814 0.483 

13/10/2017 37814 0 0 

JAGDISHWAR T TOPPO 400 0.005 01/04/2017 400 0.005 

13/10/2017 37814 38214 0.488 

24/11/2017 3000 35214 0.450 

12/01/2018 1000 34214 0.437 

19/01/2018 9758 24456 0.312 

26/01/2018 105 24351 0.311 

02/02/2018 2533 21818 0.279 

02/03/2018 21 21797 0.278 

31/03/2018 0 0 21797 0.278 

Investor Education And Protection Fund 
Authority Ministry Of Corporate Affairs 

01/12/2017 129264 129264 1.651 

0 15/12/2017 1254 130518 1.667 

31/03/2018 0 0 130518 1.667 

Pooja Nimish Kenia 0 09/03/2018 45500 45500 0.581 

31/03/2018 0 0 45500 0.581 
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v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

Sl. No. Name Shareholding atthe 
beginning of the year 

Date Bought Sold Cumulative Shareholding 
during the year 

No. of 
shares 

% oftotal 
shares of 
the co. 

No. of shares % oftotal 
shares of 
the com-
pany 

1 Dr. SNSASIDHARAN 
KARTHA 

1338585 17.096 01/04/2017 1338585 17.096 

30/06/2017 1650 1340235 17.116 

07/07/2017 2136 1342371 17.143 

21/07/2017 1262 1343633 17.160 

28/07/2017 65 1343698 17.160 

25/08/2017 5160 1348858 17.226 

01/09/2017 5559 1354417 17.297 

08/09/2017 101 1354518 17.299 

31/03/2018 0 0 1354518 17.299 

2 MATHEW CHERIAN 
MUNDANICAL 

823150 10.513 01/04/2017 823150 10.513 

31/03/2018 0 0 823150 10.513 

3 JAYA S KARTHA 386740 4.939 01/04/2017 386740 4.939 

31/03/2018 0 0 386740 4.939 

4 SARAN SASIDHARAN 
KARTHA 

151701 1.937 01/04/2017 151701 1.937 

12/01/2018 5651 157352 2.010 

19/01/2018 3 157355 2.010 

26/01/2018 7 157362 2.010 

16/02/2018 220 157582 2.013 

02/03/2018 1380 158962 2.030 

31/03/2018 0 0 158962 2.030 

5 RAM KANWAR GARG 2500 0.031 01/04/2017 2500 0.031 

31/03/2018 0 0 2500 0.031 
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6 NABIEL MATHEW 
CHERIAN 

100 0.001 16/06/2017 100 100 0.001 

23/06/2017 150 250 0.003 

30/06/2017 800 1050 0.013 

28/07/2017 250 1300 0.017 

31/03/2018 0 0 1300 0.017 

7 G.R. WARRIER 750 0.010 01/04/2017 750 0.010 

31/03/2018 750 0.010 

8 ANIL ANANDA 
PANICKER 

143772 1.836 01/04/2017 143772 1.836 

31/03/2018 143772 1.836 

9 SURESH KUMAR .P. 100 0.001 01/04/2017 100 0.001 

31/03/2018 0 0 100 0.001 



C O C H I N M I N E R A L S A N D RUTILE L IMITED 30 

vi) INDEBTEDNESS 

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment 

Secured Loans 
excluding depos­
its ' 

Unsecured Loans ' Deposits Total 
Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at 
the beginning of 
the financial year 

i) Principal 
Amount 

46,29,55,584 NIL NIL 46,29,55,584 

ii) Interest due but 
not paid 

iii) Interest accrued 
but not due 

15,81,372 NIL NIL 15,81,372 

Total (i+ii+iii) 46,45,36,956 NIL NIL 46,45,36,956 

Change in Indebt-
edness during the 
financial year 

• Addition 92,07,97,877 4,75,00,000 NIL 92,07,97,877 

• Reduction 81,07,88,714 4,75,00,000 NIL 81,07,88,714 

Net Change 11,00,09,163 - - 11,00,09,163 

Indebtedness at 
the end of the 
financial year 

i) Principal 
Amount 

57,45,46,119 - - 57,45,46,119 

ii) Interest due but 
not paid 

- - - -

iii) Interest accrued 
but not due 

- - - -

Total (i+ii+iii) 57,45,46,119 NIL NIL 57,45,46,119 
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vii) R E M U N E R A T I O N OF D I R E C T O R S A N D K E Y M A N A G E R I A L P E R S O N N E L : 

A. 

Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole- t ime Directors: 

Sl. 

no. 

Particulars of 

Remuneration 

Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amoun t 

Dr. S N Sasid-

haran Kartha, 

MD 

Saran S Kartha 

Joint MD 

1 Gross salary 

(a) Salary as 

per provisions 

contained in sec­

t ion 17(1) of the 

Income-tax Act, 

1961 

1,20,00,000 96,00,000 2,16,00,000 

(b) Value of per-

quisites u/s 17(2) 

Income-tax Act, 

1961 

N A N A N A 

(c) Profits in lieu 

of salary under 

section 17(3) 

Income-tax Act, 

1961 

N A NA NA 

2. Stock Opt ion NA NA NA 

3. Sweat Equity NA NA NA 

4. Commission - as 

% of prof i t 

NIL NIL NIL 

- others, speci-

fy. . . 

NIL NIL NIL 

5. Others, please 

specify -Contri­

but ion 

14,40,000 11,52,000 25,92,000 

Total(A) 1,34,40,000 1,07,52,000 2,41,92000 

Ceiling as per 

the Act 

Rs. 120 lakhs 

per annum 

Rs. 120 lakhs per 

annum 
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B. Remuneration to other directors: (Amount in Rupees) 

SI. 
no. 

Particulars of Remu­
neration 

Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total 
Amount (?) 

RKGarg Mathew M 
Cherian 

AJPa i GRWar-
rier 

Jaya S 
Kartha 

Nabiel 
Mathew 
Cherian 

TPThom-
askutty 

Anil 
Ananda 
Panicker 

Anand 
Sarma 
KSIDC 
Nominee 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9(b) 

1 Independent Directors 
* Fee for attending 
board/committee 
meetings 
* Commission 
* Others, please specify 

10,50,000 - 10,50,000 10,50,000 - - 5,00,000 - - 36,50,000 

Total(1) 10,50,000 - 10,50,000 10,50,000 - - 5,00,000 - - 36,50,000 

2. Other Non-Executive 
Directors 
* Fee for attending 
board/committee 
meetings 
* Commission 
* Others, please specify 

- 3,00,000 - - 5,00,000 5,00,000 - 4,00,000 1,00,000 18,00,000 

Total(2) - 3,00,000 - - 5,00,000 5,00,000 - 4,00,000 1,00,000 18,00,000 

Total (B)=(1+2) 10,50,000 3,00,000 10,50,000 10,50,000 5,00,000 5,00,000 5,00,000 4,00,000 1,00,000 54,50,000 

Total Managerial Remuneration 2,96,42,000 

Overall Ceiling as per 
the Act 

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration payable to Directors other than Executive Directors shall not 
exceed 1 % of the net profit of the company. The company may pay sitting fees to the Directors for attending Board/committee meetings 
as may be decided by the Board of Directors. The Board has fixea Rs.1,00,000/- as sitting fees for Board/Audit Committee meetings and 
Rs.50,000/- for other committee meetings. 
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD : 

Sl. 
no. 

Particulars of 
Remuneration 

Key Managerial Personnel 

C G M (Finance) & 
Company Secretary 

CFO 

Suresh Kumar P (Rs.) K S Suresh Kumar (Rs.) 

Gross salary 
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) 
of the Income-tax Act, 1961 

20,23,628 11,14,653 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 6384 6384 

(c) Profits in lie of salary under section 17(3) Income-
tax 

- -

2. Stock Option - -

3. Sweat Equity - -

4. Commission - as % of profit - -

5. Others, please specify - -

Total 20,30,012 11,21,037 

VIII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NIL 
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Annexure - VI 

Part iculars of employees 

The informat ion required under Section 197 of the Act read w i th rule 5(1) and (2) of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are given below: 

a. The ratio of the remunerat ion of each director to the median remunerat ion of the employees 

of the Company for the f inancial year and the percentage increase in remunerat ion of each d i ­

rector & Key Managerial personnel in the financial year 

Execut ive directors Ratio to med ian 

remunerat ion 

% increase in 

current year 

Dr. S N Sas idharan Kartha 30.99:1 NIL 

Mr. Saran S Kartha 24.79:1 NIL 

Key Manager ia l Personnel 

Mr. Suresh K u m a r P, 

CGM(F inance ) & Co. Secretary 
4.68:1 NIL 

Mr. Suresh K u m a r K S 

Chief Financial Officer. 
2.9:1 NIL 

Note: For this purpose, sitt ing fees paid to the Directors have not been considered as remunerat ion. 

b. The percentage increase in the median remunerat ion of employees in the financial year:-

10.14% 

c. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company: 296 

d. The explanation on the relationship between average increase in remunerat ion and Company 

performance: 

The average increase in remunerat ion to employees were given as per terms of new long term 

wage agreement w i th Trade Unions ofemployees and variable dearness al lowance not i f ied by 

the Government l inked to cost of inf lat ion index 

e. Comparison of the remunerat ion of the key managerial personnel against the performance of 

the Company: 

aggregate remunerat ion of key managerial personnel (KMP) in FY 

17-18 (crores) 

2.73 

Revenue (crores) 165.1 

Remuneration of KMPs (as % of revenue) 1.66 

Profit/Loss before Tax (PBT) (crores) 2.18 

Remuneration of KMP (as % of PBT) 125.38 

f . Var iat ions in the market capital isat ion of the Company , price earn ings ratio as at 

the c losing date of the current f inancial year and previous f inancial year: 

Part iculars March 3 1 , 2018 March 3 1 , 2017 % change 

Market Capitalisation 

(crores) 

79 83 (4.8) 

Price Earnings Ratio N.A N.A -
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g. Percentage increase or decrease in the market quotat ions of the shares of the 

C o m p a n y in compar ison to the rate at wh ich the C o m p a n y came out wi th the 

last public offer: 

Particulars 31.03.2018 31.03.2017 % Change* 

Market Price (BSE) Rs. 101 106 (4.71) 

Market Price (NSE) N A N A _ 

Note: Percentage of increase or decrease in market quotat ions of the shares of the Company in 

comparison w i th the last public offer is not applicable as the last public offer was in 1994 and the 

data is incomparable. 

h. Average percenti le increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the mana­

gerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison w i th the percenti le increase in 

the managerial remunerat ion and just i f icat ion thereof and point ou t i f there are any excep­

t ional circumstances for increase in the managerial remunerat ion: 

The average annual increase was around 10.32% dur ing the course of the year. There was no 

increase in the managerial remunerat ion dur ing the year. 

i . Comparison of remunerat ion of each of the key managerial personnel against the perfor­

mance of the Company: 

MD 

Dr. S N Sasi-

dharan Kartha 

JMD 

Mr. Saran S 

Kartha 

CGM (F) & 

Company 

Secretary 

Chief Finan-

cial Officer 

Remuneration in FY17-18 1,34,40,000 1,07,52,000 20,30,012 11,21,037 

Revenue(Rs. In Crores) 165.10 165.10 165.10 165.10 

Remuneration as % of revenue 0.81 0.65 0.12 0.07 

Profit/Loss before Tax(Rs. In 

crores) 

2.18 2.18 2.18 2.18 

Remuneration (as % of PBT) 61.63 49.3 9.31 5.14 

j . The key parameters for any variable component of remunerat ion availed by the directors: 

N.A 

k. The ratio of the remunerat ion of the highest paid director to that of the employees who 

are not directors but receive remunerat ion in excess of the highest paid director dur ing the 

year: None. 

l. Aff i rmation that the remunerat ion is as per the remunerat ion policy of the Company: 

The Company affirms remunerat ion is as per the remunerat ion policy of the Company. 

m. The statement containing particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the 

Act read w i th Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appoin tment and Remuneration of Managerial 

Personnel) Rules, 2014, (i.e. above Rs. 5 lakhs p.m.). NIL 
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Annexure-V I I 

M a n a g e m e n t Discussion and Analys is 

Cochin Minerals and Rutile Limited is a 100 percent Export Oriented unit in the Mineral Process­
ing sector w i th manufactur ing, market ing and research capabilit ies. The Company's products 
and their applications are: 

a) Main Product 

The main product is Synthetic Rutile which finds appl icat ion as raw material for the Ti tanium 
p igment and t i tan ium sponge/metal industry. The annual licensed and installed capacity is 
50000 MT. 

b) By-Products 

The fo l lowing are the by-products. 

i) Ferric Chloride which has applications as an etching agent and is an effective coagulant 
for dr ink ing water and Effluent Treatment. 

ii) Ferrous Chloride is coagulant for dr ink ing water and eff luent t reatment. 

iii) Iron Hydroxide (Cemox) used for brick / t i le making and substi tute for iron ore. 

iv) Recovered TiO2 as a cheaper substi tute for TiO2 p igment . 

v) Recovered Upgraded Ilmenite 

R a w Materials 

The main raw materials of your company are I lmenite and Hydrochloric Acid. The rationale of set­
t ing up of this plant was the indigenous availability of both these items. Now, whi le Hydrochloric 
Acid is indigenously available, the availabil ity of i lmenite f rom domestic source has shown a de­
cl ining t rend. In the last three years including the year under review, the company was facing a 
major chal lenge in its procurement f rom domestic source. The supply f rom the domestic market 
was qui te restricted. Your company made all efforts to procure the material f rom various sources, 
and maintained the qual i ty of product th rough process adaptat ion. The Company had init iated 
action for carrying out min ing and mineral separation as early as in the year 1991. The Company 
had also promoted Kerala Rare Earths and Minerals Limited (KREML) dur ing the year 2001 and 
appl ied for min ing lease in the l ight of the change in policy by the Government of India and the 
Government of Kerala. A l though the company obta ined necessary approval f rom Central Gov­
ernment, min ing lease f rom State Government could not be obta ined. 

The appeal fi led by Kerala Rare Earths and Minerals Limited before the Appel late Author i ty on 
rejection of Min ing lease applications by the State Government has been favourably disposed 
wi th direct ion to the State Government for issue of Min ing Lease. 

The Hon. High Court of Kerala has passed an order on 21st February, 2013, in the wr i t pet i t ion 
filed by K R E M L, w i th a direct ion to the Government of Kerala to do the needful for grant of 
min ing lease to the company wi th in a period of six months, which was subsequently extended 
upto 31st May 2014. Thereafter, the State Government f i led a wr i t appeal w i th Hon. 
High Court. The Division Bench of the Hon. High Court dismissed the above appeal. Sub­
sequently, the State Government fi led a special leave pet i t ion w i th Honourable Supreme 
Court against the aforesaid order of the High Court. 

The Hon. Supreme Court has issued a final j udgement on 8th April 2016 dismissing all the ap­
peals fi led by the Government of Kerala in the matter of issuing mining lease to M/s Kerala 
Rare Earths and Mineral Limited. KREML has already taken up the matter w i th the State Govern-
ment to comply w i th the court orders and favorable decision f rom the Government is awaited. 

sonali.rana
Highlight

sonali.rana
Highlight



C O C H I N M I N E R A L S A N D RUTILE L IMITED 37 

Operat ional Per formance 

The operat ional per formance highl ights for the year 2017-2018 are g iven below: 

2017-18 2016-17 

G rossR ev enu e ( R s . l a k hs ) 16505.88 14962.27 

Net Profit/Loss ( Rs. lakhs ) 218.08 (803.17) 

Outlook 

The demand for the main product viz. Synthetic Rutile, is picking up and the Company could 
make improvement in turnover f rom Rs.149 crores to Rs. 164 crores dur ing the last financial year. 
But the scenario in respect of supply of main raw material, i lmenite, f rom domestic sources re­
mains uncertain. Hence i lmenite wil l have to be impor ted w i th impl icat ion in respect of qual i ty 
and price. In any case company is making all efforts to maintain max imum level of product ion. 
Your Directors are concerned about the shortage in availability of i lmenite and are making 
all efforts for sourcing of I lmenite f rom domestic / internat ional source and market ing of the 
product. The situation is expected to improve in the current year. In the longer term, in view of 
the Supreme Court j u d g m e n t the company expects that the State Government wi l l grant min ing 
lease so that the company wil l have its own source of I lmenite. 

The company is also taking steps to increase the product ion and market ing of its by-products 
viz. Recovered TiO2, Ferric Chloride and Recovered Upgraded i lmenite. 

Risks, Concerns and Strength 

The risk factors, as far as your company is concerned, are the unpredictable situation in the avail­
abil i ty and price of I lmenite and Hydrochloric Acid, the major and critical raw materials of your 
company. 

The market scenario for TiO2 Pigment and Ti tanium Metal industries where- in Synthetic Rutile is 
used is highly compet i t ive. 

The major strength of your company is that its products are of highest International Standards 
and are well accepted by the buyers . Your company has now been granted ISO 9001:2015 
by the prestigious agency Bureau Veritas, w i th accreditation f rom UKAS London and NABCB 
India. The Company also go t certi f ication f rom N S F International, an organization designated 
as a Collaborating Center by the World Health Organization (WHO) for our products Ferric Chlo­
ride, Ferrous Chloride and Ferrous Chloride w i th hydrated Titania catalyst that these products 
conform to NSF/ANSI standard 60 for dr ink ing water t reatment. 

Skilled and dedicated work force is another strength of our Company. 

Heal th , Safety and env i ronment 

The company gives high prior i ty to issues concerning health, safety and environment. 

Health - The company aims to provide comprehensive health services covering preventive, pro-
mot ive and curative health care to all the employees. Apart f r om being covered by compre-
hensive group health insurance scheme, the employees are also ent i t led to medical reimburse­
ments under the employees medical beneficiary scheme of the company. 

Safety - Safety of persons overrides all other considerations. This vision drives the company 
cont inuously to look for ways to break new barriers in safety management for the benefi t of all. 
Safety awareness programmes are regularly conducted for the employees. 

Envi ronment - The Company aims to maintain a clean and pol lut ion free environment. Environ-
ment impact assessment and qual i tat ive risk analysis are conducted for all new/major expansion 
or diversification projects and all necessary safeguard measures are incorporated as part of the 
project. The eff luent t reatment plants, air emission abatement units, waste t reatment / disposal 
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facilities etc are maintained as per statutory standards. The company complies w i th all pol lu­
t ion control and envi ronment protect ion regulations. The company also undertakes various 
envi ronment protect ion programmes such as tree plant ing, water conservation measures, water 
purif ication and energy saving initiatives etc. 

The company's by-product Ferric Chloride is now widely and successfully used in water purifica­
t ion and eff luent t reatment. Another by-product cemox helps in reducing the ecological prob­
lems by helping to reduce clay mining and a supplement to Iron Ore supply. 

Internal Control S y s t e m s and a d e q u a c y 

Your company maintains formal internal control systems and procedures which are con-
t inuously and strictly enforced. These have been designed to provide reasonable assurance 
wi th regard to providing reliable f inancial in format ion, compl iance w i th appl icable statutes, safe­
guarding assets and ensuring adherence to Company's corporate policies. These systems and 
procedures, which are routinely tested and cert i f ied by your company's statutory and internal 
auditors and reviewed by the audit commit tee, are found to be adequate and effective. 

H u m a n Resources 

Your company values its human resources as the greatest asset and maintains harmonious in-
dustrial relations. 
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A N N E X U R E - VIII 

C O R P O R A T E G O V E R N A N C E R E P O R T 

1. C o m p a n y Phi losophy : 

Cochin Minerals and Rutile Limited has always focused on good Corporate Governance prac­

tices as it believes that a strong corporate governance policy is indispensable to healthy g rowth of 

business and long term value creation for the company's stake holders. Good corporate governance 

provides an appropr iate f ramework for the Board and the Management to carry ou t the objectives 

that are in the interests of the Company and the shareholders. The company endeavors to enhance 

and protect the long term interest of all its stake holders keeping in mind corporate social respon­

sibility. The company is in ful l compl iance w i th all the corporate governance requirements of the 

guidelines on corporate governance st ipulated under the SEBI Listing Regulations 2015. 

The Certificate of Compliance by the C E O and C F O submi t ted to the Board in this regard is 

annexed. 

I t is the policy of the company to cont inuously improve the product qual i ty to the total satis­

fact ion of the customers by the contr ibut ion of skills, talents and innovations of its employees. 

The Company has a well def ined Policy to provide and maintain safe and healthy work­

ing envi ronment to achieve total safety of employees, envi ronment, equipments, processes and 

movable and immovable objects. Its commi tmen t to safety is ensured by having an effective 

system, maintaining inbui l t facilities, fo l lowing good safety practices w i th the active par-

t ic ipat ion of people work ing in the Company. These efforts have resulted in accomplishing an 

accident free 2017-2018. The company lays special emphasis on protect ion of the envi ronment 

th rough various pol lut ion control measures. 

2. Board of Directors : 

( i) Composi t ion : 

The company has a non-executive and independent Chairman. Out of the total strength of 

11 members of the Board, 9 are non-executive and 4 are independent. The composi t ion of the 

Board is in conformi ty w i th the Governance requirements, which stipulate that 50 per cent of the 

Board should comprise non-executive directors and, if the Chairman is non-executive, 1/3rd of 

the Board should be independent. 

The names and categories o f the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board Meetings and 

Annual General Meet ing, number ofdirectorships in other companies and total commi t tee member­

ship/chairmanship are given in Table 'A. 
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TABLE - A - Board of Directors - Details 

Name Position Board 
Meetings 
held dur-
ing the 
year 

Board 
Meetings 
Attended 

Last 
AGM 
attended 
or not 

Direc-
torship 
in other 
Compa-
nies 

Total 
Com-
mittee 
Member-
ships 

Shri. R.K. Garg Chairman, 
Non-Execu­
tive, Inde-
pendent 

5 5 Yes 2 3 

Shri. Mathew.M.Cherian Non-Execu-
tive 

5 3 No 3 1 

Dr. S.N.Sasidharan Kartha Managing 
Director, 
Executive 

5 5 Yes 4 2 

Shri. A.J. Pai Non-Exec-
utive Inde-
pendent 

5 5 Yes 19 2 

Shri. G.R. Warrier Non-Exec-
utive Inde-
pendent 

5 5 Yes 2 3 

Smt. Jaya.S.Kartha Non-Execu-
tive 

5 5 Yes 1 1 

Shri. Saran S Kartha Joint Manag­
ing Director, 
Executive 

5 5 Yes 2 2 

Shri. Anil Ananda 
Panicker 

Non-Execu­
tive 

5 4 Yes 2 -

Shri. Nabiel Mathew-
Cherian 

Non-Execu­
tive 

5 5 Yes 1 1 

Sri. Anand Sharma Non-Execu-
tive (KSIDC 
Nominee) 

5 1 No - -

Sri. R. Ravichandran Non-Execu-
tive (KSIDC 
Nominee) 

5 - No 15 -

Shri. T P Thomaskutty Non-Exec-
utive Inde-
pendent 

5 5 yes 1 -
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Shri. Anand Sarma, General Manager, K S I D C Ltd., Thiruvananthapuram ceased to be a Direc­

tor of the company w i th effect f rom 01.02.2018 and Shri. R Ravichandran, Dy. General Manager, 

Kerala State Industrial Development Corporat ion Ltd. was appointed as Nominee Director of K S 

I D C Ltd., w i th effect f rom 01.02.2018. 

ii) Meet ings : 

5 (five) meetings of the Board were held dur ing the year ended 31st March 2018. These were on 

18th May 2017, 17th July 2017, 29th August 2017, 14th November, 2017 and 7th February 

2018. The gap between any t w o meetings d id not exceed four months. 

iii) A t tendance : 

Attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings and last Annual General Meet ing are given 

in Table "A". 

IV) Share holding in the company by non-executive directors as on 31/03/2018 were as fol lows: 

Director Shares Held 

1. Mr. Mathew M Cherian 823150 

2. Mrs. Jaya S Kartha 386740 

3. Mr. Nabiel Mathew Cherian 1300 

4. Mr. R K Garg 2500 

5. Mr. G R Warrier 750 

6. Mr. Anil Ananda Panicker 143772 

3. Code of Conduct under corporate governance regulat ions 

The company has adopted a code of conduct for its Board members and senior management 

personnel, in compl iance of the corporate governance guidelines. The code is applicable to all 

Board members and senior management personnel, w h o have aff i rmed their compl iance wi th 

the code dur ing the year ended 3 1 s t March 2018. The declaration by the Managing Director (CEO) 

as regards compl iance w i th the code is annexed. 

4. Code of conduct under insider t rading regulat ions 

The company has adopted a code of conduct for its Board members and designated employees 

in compl iance of the SEBI (Insider Trading) regulations. The company has obta ined prescribed 

undertakings f rom all directors and designated employees as regards compl iance w i th the 

code. 

5. Secretar ia l S tandards and audit 

The company adheres to the mandatory and non-mandatory secretarial standards issued by 

the Institute of Company Secretaries of India on impor tan t corporate practices such as Board 

Meetings, General Meetings, payment of d iv idend, maintenance of registers and records, min­

utes of meetings, transmission of shares, passing of resolutions by circulation and Board's re-

port. The company has also undergone secretarial audit by an independent Company Secre-

tary in who le t ime practice. 
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6. Audi t Commit tee 

The Audi t Commit tee of the company dur ing the year consisted of 5 members out of which 3 
non - executive and independent Directors, two of t hem having expert knowledge in Finance 
and Accounts and t w o Executive Directors. The terms of reference of the commi t tee included 
the fo l lowing : 

(i) Reviewing financial statements before submission to the Board. 

(ii) Reviewing quarterly work ing results and l imited review reports of the auditors. 

(iii) Reviewing audi ted f inancial accounts and audit report before submission to the Board. 

(iv) Reviewing account ing policies and practices. 

(v) Recommending appo in tment of Auditors and f ixing their remunerat ion. 

(vi) Discussion w i th internal auditors regarding nature, scope and findings of audit. 

(vii) Reviewing internal control and internal audit systems and their compl iance thereof. 

The audit commi t tee is empowered to seek informat ion f rom any employee, if necessary. No em­
ployee is denied access to the audit commit tee. 

The audit commi t tee met f ive t imes dur ing the year 18th May 2017, 17th July 2017, 29th 
August 2017, 14th November, 2017 and 7th February 2018. The attendance record is given in 
"Table - B". The Company Secretary of the Company is the secretary of the Commit tee. 

Table B - Audi t Commi t tee A t tendance 

N a m e s of M e m b e r Directors No: of 

meet ings 

held 

Meet ing 

a t tended 

Shri. R.K. Garg (Chairman) 5 5 

Shri.AJ. Pai 5 5 

Shri. G R Warrier 5 5 

Dr. S N Sasidharan Kartha 5 5 

Shri. Saran S Kartha 5 5 

7. Vigi l Mechan ism 

The company has deviced a vigil mechanism in the fo rm of a Whistle Blower Policy in pursuance 

of provisions of Section 177 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and details whereof is available on 

the company's website at www.cmrl ind ia.com >policies . During the year under review, there 

was no complaint received under this mechanism. 

8. Nominat ion & Remunera t ion Commi t tee : 

In compl iance w i th Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has const i tuted the Re­
munerat ion Commit tee as the"Nominat ion and Remuneration Commit tee" consisting of the fo l -
lowing Independent Directors. 
1. Shri. R K Garg - Chairman 
2. Shri. G R Warrier - Member 
3. Shri. A J Pai - Member 
The remunerat ion commi t tee is vested w i th all the necessary powers and author i ty to determine 
and recommend the remunerat ion payable to the executive directors and key management 
personnel. At present the Company has only two Executive Directors ie. Dr. S N Sasidharan 
Kartha, the Managing Director and Shri. . Saran S Kartha, Joint Managing Director. The Man-
aging Director is paid the m in imum remunerat ion as per schedule V or 5% of the net profits of 

http://www.cmrlindia.com
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the Company whichever is higher. No other perquisite, incentives or stock opt ions are payable 
to h im. Mr. Saran S Kartha, Joint Managing Director is also paid remunerat ion not exceeding 
the limits specified in Part II, Section II of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, or any other 
statutory modif icat ions or enactments thereof for the t ime being in force or 5% of the net profits 
of the company, whichever is higher. No other perquisite, incentives or stock opt ions are pay-
able to h im. The non-executive Directors are paid one per cent commission on net prof i t of the 
company. 

Particulars of Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting and attendance of members 

Table - C- Remunera t ion Commi t tee A t tendance 

N a m e s of M e m b e r Directors No. of meet ­ Meet ing at­

ings held t e n d e d 

Shri. R K Garg(Chairman) 1 1 

Shri. G R Warrier 1 1 

Shri. A J Pai 1 1 

Details of remunerat ion paid to Directors dur ing the year are given in "Table - D" 

TABLE - D - Remunera t ion to Directors 

Name Sitt ing Fees (Rs.) Salary (Rs.) Contr ibut ion 
to PF (Rs.) 

Total (Rs.) 

Shri. R.K. Garg 10,50,000 - - 10,50,000 

Shri. Mathew.M.Cherian 3,00,000 - - 3,00,000 

Dr. S.N. Sasidharan 
Kartha 

- 1,20,00,000 14,40,000 1,34,40,000 

Shri. A.J. Pai 10,50,000 - - 10,50,000 

K S I D C Ltd. (Nominee 
Shri. Anand Sarma) 

1,00,000 1,00,000 

Shri. G.R. Warrier 10,50,000 - - 10,50,000 

Smt. Jaya.S.Kartha 5,00,000 - - 5,00,000 

Shri. Saran S Kartha - 96,00,000 11,52,000 1,07,52,000 

Shri. Anil Ananda Pan-
icker 

4,00,000 - - 4,00,000 

Shri. Nabiel Mathew 

Cherian 

5,00,000 - - 5,00,000 

Shri. T P Thomaskutty 5,00,000 - - 5,00,000 

54,50,000 2,16,00,000 25,92,000 2,96,42,000 

9. Famil iar izat ion p r o g r a m m e for independent directors 

The company has adopted a policy for Familiarization programme for independent directors.The 

details are available on the company's web site www.cmrl india.com > policies. . 

10. Share Transfer Commit tee 

Share Transfer Commit tee consists of three members including Compliance Officer and Chief 

Financial Officer, as the members of the Commit tee. The Commit tee reviews and approves 

the transfers and transmission of equi ty shares, issue of dupl icate share certif icate etc. 

http://www.cmrlindia.com


C O C H I N M I N E R A L S A N D RUTILE L IMITED 44 

The Company's shares are compulsor i ly t raded in demat fo rm. However, the Share Transfer com­

mittee met at f requent intervals i.e. 23 t imes dur ing the year. There were no pending transfers as 

on 31st March 2018. 

11 . Stakeholders Relat ionship Commit tee 

The commi t tee met once dur ing the f inancial year ended 31st March, 2018. The date of meet ing 

was 07.02.2018. 

The outstanding investor complaints as on 31.03.2018 was NIL 

Particulars of Stakeholder Relationship Commit tee meet ing and attendance of members 

Names of Directors No. of 
meetings 
held 

No. of 
meet­
ings at-
tended 

Shri. R K Garg 1 1 

Shri. Mathew M Cherian 1 1 

Smt. Jaya S Kartha 1 1 

Shri. Nabiel Mathew Cherian 1 1 

12. Share Transfer Sys tem 

a) The shares, in physical fo rm received for transfer are processed and transfers effected generally 

wi th in a period of 10 days f rom the date of receipt, provided the documents are valid and com­

plete in all respects. Physical shares for demat are received by the Registrar & Transfer Agents 

and processed wi th in the stipulated t ime. The author i ty for approving Share Transfers are del-

egated to the Share transfer Commit tee. Transfer of dematerial ised shares is effected through 

the depositories w i th no involvement of the Company. 

b) Registrar and Transfer Agents 

M/s. SKDC Consultants Ltd., 

Kanapathy Towers, 

3rd Floor, 

1391/A-1, Sathy Road, 

Ganapathy, 

Coimbatore - 641 006 

Ph:0422 - 4958995, 2539835-836 

Fax : 91 422 2539837 

E-mail: info@skdc-consultants.com 

mailto:info@skdc-consultants.com
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13. Genera l Body Meet ings : 

(a) Location and t ime of last 3 Annual General Meetings are given below. 

Year Locat ion Date T ime 

2014- 15 Aluva, Kerala 14.09.2015 11.00 A.M. 

2015- 16 Aluva, Kerala 22.09.2016 2.00 P.M. 

2016- 17 Aluva, Kerala 29.08.2017 2.30 P.M 

(b) Specia l resolut ion/s passed in the last 3 A n n u a l Genera l Meet ings 

2014-2015 - NIL 

2015-2016 - NIL 

2016-2017- Re-appointment of Managing Director 

(c) Postal Ballot : 

No resolution was put th rough postal ballot dur ing last year. None of the business proposed in 

the ensuing AGM require passing a resolution t h rough postal ballot. 

14. Disc losures. 

a) Disclosure of material ly signif icant related party t ransact ions that m a y have po­

tential confl ict wi th the interests of the company. 

No transaction of material nature has been entered into by the company w i th its promoters, 

directors, the management, subsidiaries or relatives etc. that may have potent ial confl ict the 

interests of the company. 

b) Disclosure of non-compl iance 

There were no instances of non-compl iance and no penalty or strictures imposed on the 

company by the stock exchanges or SEBI or any statutory author i ty on any matter related to 

capital markets, dur ing the last three years. 

c) Shares S u s p e n s e account 

The Company had no shares in the demat suspense account or unclaimed suspense ac-

count. 

d) Discret ionary requi rements 

The company has fulf i l led the fo l lowing non-mandatory requirements as per Section II(E) of the 

Listing Regulation. 

i) The company cont inue in a regime of unqual i f ied statutory financial statements. 

ii) The company ensures that Independent Directors of the company have the requisite 

qualif ication and experience which wou ld be of use to the Company. 

iii) Separate persons occupy the posit ion of Chairman and Managing Director (C E O). 

iv) The Internal Audi tor report directly to the Audi t Commit tee. 

e) The c o m p a n y have no subsidiary 

f ) The c o m p a n y have no hedging activi t ies. The commod i t y price risks 

are d iscussed in the Managemen t Discussion and Analys is Report . 
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15. Means of C o m m u n i c a t i o n . 

The quarterly, half yearly and annual work ing results of the company are publ ished in newspa­

pers like Financial Express and Kerala Kaumudi. The Management Discussion and Analysis is 

included as a part of the annual report for the year ended 3 1 s t March 2018. 

16. Genera l Shareho lder Informat ion. 

Annual General Meet ing : Monday, 10 t h September, 2018 at 9.30 A.M. 

: Priyadarshini Municipal Town Hall, Thottakkattukara, Aluva, 

Ernakulam, Kerala. 

: Year ended 3 1 s t March, 2018 

: 04.09.2018 to 10.09.2018 (both days inclusive) 

The shares of the company are listed at 

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. 

COCHRDM 513353 

INE105D01013 

Venue 

Financial Year 

Book Closure Date 

Listing 

Stock Code 

Demat ISIN 

17. Market Price Data 

The High/Low prices of the company's share at the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. dur ing each 

month of the Financial year 2017 - 2018 are given below: 

Month Year Month's High Month 's L o w 

Rs. Rs. 

April 2017 107.50 95.00 

May 2017 109.90 90.00 

June 2017 105.00 88.70 

July 2017 101.90 90.00 

August 2017 95.00 77.00 

September 2017 124.85 84.75 

October 2017 128.80 102.05 

November 2017 160.00 111.15 

December 2017 144.80 130.00 

January 2018 214.00 130.00 

February 2018 171.00 129.05 

March 2018 144.00 101.05 
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18. Distr ibut ion of Sharehold ing as on 31st March 2018. 

a. Category-wise Distr ibut ion 

Promoters 52.733 

Banks/FIS/mutual funds 1.292 

NRIs 2.907 

Private Corporate Bodies 2.463 

Others 40.605 

Total 100.00 

b. Value-wise Distr ibut ion 

Distr ibution of hold ings as on 31/03/2018 

1 2 3 4 5 

Value (Rs) No. of Holders % Amoun t % 

Upto 5000 8570 93.58 9118790 11.65 

5001 10000 287 3.13 2355810 3.01 

10001 20000 133 1.45 2059700 2.63 

20001 30000 50 0.55 1262010 1.61 

30001 40000 26 0.28 895200 1.14 

40001 50000 14 0.15 666580 0.85 

50001 100000 33 0.36 2572430 3.29 

100001 And 
Above 

46 0.50 59369480 75.82 

Total 9159 100 78300000 100 

19. Demater ia l isat ion of Shares and Liquidity. 

92.85 percent of the company's paid-up capital is held in demat fo rm as on 3 1 s t March 2018. 

Trading in the shares of the company is permi t ted only in demat fo rm for all investors. The 

company has signed agreements w i th National Securities Depository Limited and Central 

Depository Services (India) Limited to offer deposi tory services for the company. 

The shares of the company are regularly t raded at the BSE Ltd. and has good liquidity. 

20. Outs tanding GDR/ADR/Warrants /Conver t ib le instruments and their impact on 

equity. 

Not appl icable to the company. 

2 1 . Plant Locat ion. 

Edayar Industrial Development Area, 

Muppa thadom P.O. 

Binanipuram, 

Kerala - 683110 

Tel. - 0484 - 2532186 
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22 . A d d r e s s for Cor respondence . 

Cochin Minerals and Rutile Limited, 

P.B. No. 73, VIII/224, 

Market Road, 

Aluva - 683 101, 

Kerala. 

Tel : 0484 - 2626789 

Fax : 0484 - 2625674 

E-mail : cmrlexim@cmrl india.com, cmrlexim@dataone.in 

mailto:cmrlexim@cmrlindia.com
mailto:cmrlexim@dataone.in
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A n n e x u r e - IX 

A U D I T O R S ' CERTIF ICATE O N C O R P O R A T E G O V E R N A N C E 

To 

The members of Cochin Minerals and Rutile Limited 

We have examined the compl iance of condit ions of Corporate Governance by Cochin Minerals 

and Rutile Limited ('the Company'), for the year ended 31st March 2018, as stipulated in Para E of 

Schedule V of the listing Regulations of the said company w i th the Stock Exchange(s). 

The compl iance of condit ions of Corporate Governance is the responsibil i ty of the Management. 

Our examinat ion has been l imited to a review of the procedures and implementat ion thereof 

adopted by the Company for ensuring compl iance w i th the condi t ions of Corporate Governance. 

It is neither an audi t nor an expression of op in ion on the financial statements of the Company. 

In our op in ion and to the best of our informat ion, and according to the explanations given to us, 

and based on the representations made by the Directors and the management, we certify that 

the Company has compl ied w i th the condit ions of Corporate Governance as st ipulated in the 

above ment ioned Listing Regulations. 

As required by the Guidance note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, we 

have to state that as per the records maintained and cert i f ied by the Company/Registrars and 

Transfer Agent of the company, there was no investor grievances remaining unat tended/pend-

ing for more than 30 days as at 31st March 2018 

We further state that such compl iance is neither an assurance as to the future viabi l i ty of the 

Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness w i th which the management has conducted the 

affairs of the Company. 

Declaration regarding compl iance by Board Members and Senior Management Personnel w i th 

the Company's Code of Conduct in terms of Clause 26 of the Listing Regulations 

This is to conf i rm that the company has adopted a code of conduct for its Board Members and 

Senior Management Personnel and that the company has in respect of the Financial Year ended 

31st March 2018 received Aff irmations f rom the Board Members and Senior Management Per­

sonnel as regards compl iance w i th the code, as applicable to them. 

Alwaye 

29/05/2018 

S/d-

MURALEEKRISHNAN.A.K, Bsc. FCA 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT 

Membership No.217127 

Aluva, 

29.05.2018 

Sd/-

Dr. S N Sasidharan Kartha 

Managing Director 
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Form No. MR-3 

S E C R E T A R I A L A U D I T R E P O R T 

FOR T H E F I N A N C I A L Y E A R E N D E D 31st March 2018 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies (Appoint­

ment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 

The Members, 

Cochin Minerals and Rutile Ltd. 

Aluva 

I, K P Thomas, company secretary, proprietor of K P Thomas & Co., have conducted the secretarial 

audit of the compl iance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 

practices by Cochin Minerals and Rutile Ltd., CIN L24299KL1989PLC005452 (hereinafter called 

' the company). The Secretarial Audi t was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable 

basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opin ion 

thereon. 

Based on my verif ication of the company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 

f i led and other records maintained by the company and also the informat ion provided by the 

Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives dur ing the conduct of secretarial 

audit, I hereby report that in my op in ion, the company has, dur ing the audit period covering the 

f inancial year ended on 3 1 s t March 2018 compl ied w i th the statutory provisions listed hereunder 

and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compl iance-mechanism in place to 

the extent, in the manner and subject to the report ing made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns fi led and other records 

maintained by the Company for the f inancial year ended on 3 1 s t March 2018 according to the 

provisions of: 

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules. 

II. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules. 

III. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws. 

IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations to the extent of 

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 

Borrowings; 
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V. The fo l lowing Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') 

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisit ion of Shares 

and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibit ion of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 1992; 

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclo-

sure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; Not applicable dur ing the period covered. 

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employees Stock Opt ion Scheme 

and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; Not appl icable dur ing 

the period covered. 

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securi-

ties) Regulations, 2008; Not appl icable dur ing the period covered. 

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Trans­

fer Agents) Regulations, 1993. 

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regula-

tions, 2009; Not appl icable dur ing the period covered 

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 

1998: Not appl icable dur ing the period covered and 

i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligat ions and Disclosure Re-

quirements) Regulations, 2015 

(vi) The fo l lowing other laws/regulations ident i f ied by the company as specifically applicable 

to it: 

(i) Impor t - expo r t rules & regulations as applicable to Export Oriented Units, (ii) 

Goods & Service Tax, Customs Act & rules , (iii) FEMA in respect of realisation of 

export proceeds, (iv) The Environment Protection and Pollution Control Laws and 

Regulations, (v) Hazardous Waste (Management & Handling) Act/Rules (vii) The 

Explosives Act/Rules and (viii) The Legal Metro logy Act/Rules 

I have also examined the compl iance w i th the appl icable clauses of the fo l lowing: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India: 

(ii) The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company w i th the Mumbai Stock Ex-

change Ltd; 

During the period under review the Company has compl ied w i th the provisions of the Acts, 

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. ment ioned above. 

I fur ther report that: 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly const i tuted w i th proper balance of Executive Di­

rectors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composi t ion of 
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the Board of Directors that took place dur ing the period under review were carried ou t in compl i ­

ance w i th the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors of scheduled Board Meetings, agenda and detai led 

notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and 

obtain ing fur ther informat ion and clarifications on the agenda items before the meet ing and for 

meaningful part ic ipat ion at the meet ing. Majori ty decision is carried th rough, whi le the dissent­

ing members' views, if any, are captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

I fur ther report that there is adequate systems and processes in the company, commensurate 

wi th its size and operations, to moni tor and ensure compl iance w i th applicable laws, rules, regu-

lations and guidelines. 

I fur ther report that dur ing the audit period the company had no specific events/actions having 

a major bearing on the company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regula­

tions, guidelines, standards etc. 

Place: Enakulam For KP Thomas & Co 

Date : 28.07.2018. Company Secretaries 

Sd/-

K P Thomas, Proprietor 

FCS 2134, C P 8886 

Note : This Report is to be read w i th our letter of even date in Annexure A, which forms an 

integral part of this report. 
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ANNEXUREA 

28.07.2018. 

To 

The Members, 

Cochin Minerals and Rutile Ltd., 

Aluva 

Our report of even date is to be read along w i th this letter. 

1. Maintenance of Secretarial records is the responsibil i ty of the management of the Company. 

Our responsibil i ty is to express an op in ion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have fo l lowed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verif ication 

was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. We be­

lieve that the process and practices, we fo l lowed provide a reasonable basis for our op in ion. 

3. We have not verif ied the financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company, except to 

the extent required for our audit. 

4. Where ever required, we have obta ined the Management representation about the Compl i ­

ance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other appl icable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibil i ty of management. Our examinat ion was l imited to the verifica­

t ion of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audi t report is neither an assurance as to the future viabil i ty of the Company 

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness w i th which the management has conducted the affairs of 

the Company. 

For K P Thomas & Co, 

Company Secretaries 

Sd/-

K P Thomas, Proprietor 

FCS 2134, CP 8886 
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May 24, 2018 

To 

The Board of Directors 
Cochin Minerals and Rutile Limited 

Sub: CEO/CFO Certification in Terms of Clause V of the Corporate Governance 
Regulations. 

Financial Year 2017 - 2018. 

This is to certify that: 

a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the 
year ended 31.03.2018 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit 
any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading. 

ii) these statements together present a true and fair view of the company's 
affairs and are in compliance with the existing accounting standards, 
applicable laws and regulations. 

b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by 
the company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the 
company's code of conduct. 

c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for 
financial reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal 
control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting and there were 
no deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, of which we 

d) i) There were no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting 
during the year. 

ii) There were no significant changes in accounting policies during the year and 
iii) There were no instances of significant fraud, of which we were aware, for 

were aware. 

reporting. 

Sd/-
Dr. S.N. Sasidharan Kartha 
Managing Director 

Sd/-
K S Suresh Kumar , 
Chief Financial Officer. 
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I N D E P E N D E N T A U D I T O R S ' R E P O R T 

T O T H E M E M B E R S O F ' C O C H I N M I N E R A L S A N D RUTILE L IMITED' 

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements 

We have audi ted the accompanying standalone financial statements of "COCHIN MINERALS 

AND RUTILE LIMITED" ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 

2018, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the State­

ment of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, 

and a summary of significant account ing policies and other explanatory informat ion. 

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the 

Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") w i th respect to the preparation of these standalone f inancial 

statements that give a true and fair v iew of the f inancial posi t ion, f inancial performance includ­

ing other comprehensive income, cash f lows and changes in equi ty of the Company in accord­

ance w i th the Indian Account ing Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act 

read w i th the Companies (Indian Account ing Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other 

accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

This responsibil i ty also includes maintenance of adequate account ing records in accordance 

wi th the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 

and detect ing frauds and other irregularities; selection and appl icat ion of appropr iate account­

ing policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 

implementat ion and maintenance of adequate internal f inancial controls, that were operat ing 

effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the account ing records, relevant to 

the preparation and presentation of the standalone f inancial statements that give a true and fair 

v iew and are free f rom material misstatement, whether due to f raud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibil i ty is to express an op in ion on these standalone financial statements based on 

our audit. We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the account ing and audi t ing 

standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions 

of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and the Order issued under section 143(11) of the Act. 

We conducted our audi t of the standalone f inancial statements in accordance w i th the Stand­

ards on Audi t ing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we 

comply w i th ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assur-

ance about whether the standalone f inancial statements are free f rom material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the 

disclosures in the standalone f inancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the au­

ditor's j udgment , including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the stan­

dalone financial statements, whether due to f raud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 

auditor considers internal f inancial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the stan­

dalone financial statements that give a t rue and fair v iew in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 

of the account ing policies used and the reasonableness of the account ing estimates made by 
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the Company's Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone finan-

cial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence obta ined by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audi t op in ion on the standalone f inancial statements. 

Opin ion 

In our op in ion and to the best of our informat ion and according to the explanations given to us, 

the aforesaid standalone f inancial statements give the informat ion required by the Act in the 

manner so required and give a t rue and fair v iew in conformi ty w i th the account ing principles 

generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2018, and its 

profit, total comprehensive income, change in equi ty and its cash flows for the year ended on 

that date. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obta ined all the informat ion and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our op in ion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the Company 

so far as it appears f rom our examinat ion of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 

Income,Statement of Changes in Equity and the statement of Cash Flow dealt w i th by this 

report are in agreement w i th the books of account. 

(d) In our op in ion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply w i th the Indian Ac-

count ing Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act. 

(e) On the basis of the wr i t ten representations received f rom the directors of the company, as 

on 31st March, 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 

disqualif ied as on 31st March, 2018 f rom being appoin ted as a director in terms of sec-

t ion 164(2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal f inancial controls over f inancial report ing of the 

Company and the operat ing effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 

"Annexure A". 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance w i th 

Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our op in ion and to the best of 

our informat ion and according to the explanations given to us: 

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending l i t igations on its financial posit ion in 

its standalone financial statements. 

(ii) The Company d id not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for 

which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

(iii)There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Inves­

tor Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016("the Order") issued by the Cen­

tral Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the ' 

Annexure B; a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the 

extent applicable. 

Sd/-

MURALEE KRISHNAN A.K ,F.C.A 

E r n a k u l a m , CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT 

2 9 / 0 5 / 2 0 1 8 Membership No.217127 
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A N N E X U R E "A" T O T H E I N D E P E N D E N T A U D I T O R ' S R E P O R T 

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' sec­

t ion of our report to the Members of Cochin Minerals and Rutile Limited of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 

3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audi ted the internal financial controls over financial report ing of COCHIN MINERALS 

AND RUTILE LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 3 1 , 2018 in conjunct ion w i th our audit of the 

standalone f inancial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management 's Responsibi l i ty for Internal Financial Controls 

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 

f inancial controls based on the internal control over f inancial report ing criteria established by 

the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 

Note on Audi t of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementat ion and 

maintenance of adequate internal f inancial controls that were operat ing effectively for ensuring 

the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention 

and detect ion of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the account ing records, 

and the t imely preparation of reliable f inancial in format ion, as required under the Companies 

Act, 2013. 

Audi tor 's Responsibi l i ty 

Our responsibil i ty is to express an op in ion on the internal financial controls over financial re-

por t ing of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audi t in accordance w i th the 

Guidance Note on Audi t of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance 

Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Audi t ing 

prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an au­

dit of internal f inancial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 

wi th ethical requirements and plan and per form the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether adequate internal f inancial controls over f inancial report ing was established and main­

tained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audi t involves performing procedures to obtain audi t evidence about the adequacy of the 

internal f inancial controls system over f inancial report ing and their operat ing effectiveness. Our 

audit of internal f inancial controls over f inancial report ing included obta in ing an understanding 

of internal financial controls over financial report ing, assessing the risk that a material weak­

ness exists, and test ing and evaluating the design and operat ing effectiveness of internal control 

based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's j udgment , includ-

ing the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the f inancial statements, whether due 

to f raud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obta ined, is sufficient and appropriate to provide 

a basis for our audi t op in ion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial 

report ing. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Report ing 

A company's internal financial control over financial report ing is a process designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of f inancial report ing and the preparation of f inan­

cial statements for external purposes in accordance w i th generally accepted account ing princi­

ples. A company's internal financial control over financial report ing includes those policies and 

procedures that 

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detai l , accurately and fairly reflect 

the transactions and disposit ions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance 

that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in ac­

cordance w i th generally accepted account ing principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 

the company are being made only in accordance w i th authorisations of management and direc­

tors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevent ion or t imely detec­

t ion of unauthorised acquisit ion, use, or disposit ion of the company's assets that could have a 

material effect on the f inancial statements. 

Limitat ions of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Report ing 

Because of the inherent l imitat ions of internal f inancial controls over f inancial report ing, includ­

ing the possibil ity of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstate­

ments due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 

of the internal f inancial controls over f inancial report ing to future periods are subject to the risk 

that the internal f inancial control over f inancial report ing may become inadequate because of 

changes in condit ions, or that the degree of compl iance w i th the policies or procedures may 

deteriorate. 

Opin ion 

In our op in ion , to the best of our informat ion and according to the explanations given to us, 

the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 

f inancial report ing and such internal f inancial controls over f inancial report ing were operat ing 

effectively as at March 31 , 2018, based on the internal control over financial report ing criteria 

established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in 

the Guidance Note on Audi t of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Report ing issued by the 

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

A K MURALEE & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

(Firm Registration No. 011817S) 

Sd/-

MURALEEKRISHNAN. A.K, F.C.A 

(Membership No. 217127) 

Ernakulam, 

May 29,2018. 
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A N N E X U R E 'B ' T O T H E I N D E P E N D E N T A U D I T O R ' S R E P O R T 

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Require­

ments ' sect ion of our report to the M e m b e r s of C O C H I N M I N E R A L S A N D RUTILE 

L IMITED of even date) 

i. In respect of the Company's fixed assets: 

a) The Company has maintained proper records showing ful l particulars, including quant i tat ive 

details and situation of fixed assets. 

b) As explained to us, all the fixed assets have been physically verif ied by the management in 

a phased periodical manner which, in our op in ion, is reasonable having regard to the size of 

the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain f ixed assets were 

physically verif ied by the management dur ing the year. According to the informat ion and 

explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were not iced on such verif ication. 

c) According to the informat ion and explanations given to us, the records examined by us and 

based on the examinat ion of the conveyance deeds provided to us, we report that, the t i t le 

deeds, compris ing all the immovable propert ies of land and bui ldings which are freehold, are 

held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date. 

i i . 

a) As explained to us, inventories have been physically verif ied by the management at regular 

intervals dur ing the year. In our op in ion, the frequency of such verif ication is reasonable. 

b) The company has maintained proper records of inventories. As explained to us, there were 

no material discrepancies not iced on physical verif ication of inventory as compared to book 

records. 

iii. The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to the companies, f irms, 

l imited liabil ity partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 

189 of Companies Act, 2013. 

iv. In our op in ion and according to the informat ion and explanations given to us, the Company 

has compl ied w i th the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in 

respect of loans, making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable. 

v. The Company has not accepted deposits dur ing the year and therefore, the provisions of the 

clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

vi. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under 

section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried ou t by the Com­

pany. Thus report ing under clause 3(vi) of the order is not applicable to the Company. 

vii. According to the informat ion and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues: 

a) The Company has generally been regular in deposi t ing undisputed statutory dues, including 

Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax Goods and Ser­

vice Tax, Value Added Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues 

applicable to i t w i th the appropriate authorit ies. 
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b) According to the informations and explanations given to us and based on the records of the 

company explained by us, there are no dues of income tax, service tax, sales tax, Customs 

duty, Excise duty, Value added tax, Goods and Service tax and Cess which have not been de­

posited on the account of dispute, except the fo l lowing; 

N a m e of the 

Statute 

Name of Due Forum w h e r e 

Dispute is P e n d ­

ing 

Period to w h i c h 

the A m o u n t Re-

lates 

A m o u n t 

• Lakhs 

Central Sales Tax 

Act 

Central Sales Tax Deputy Commis-

sioner (Appeals), 

Commercial Taxes 

Ernakulam 

F.Y 2008-09 11.51 

viii.In our op in ion and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted 

in repayment of loans or borrowings to the f inancial inst i tut ions, banks and Government or 

dues to debenture holders. There were no debenture holders at any t ime dur ing the year. 

ix. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or fur ther public offer (in­

cluding debt instruments) or te rm loans and hence report ing under clause 3 (ix) of the Order 

is not applicable to the Company. 

x. To the best of our knowledge and according to the informat ion and explanations given to us, 

no fraud by the Company or no material f raud on the Company by its officers or employees 

has been not iced or reported dur ing the year. 

xi. In our op in ion and according to the informat ion and explanations given to us, the Company 

has paid/provided managerial remunerat ion in accordance w i th the requisite approvals man­

dated by the provisions of section 197 read w i th Schedule V to the Act. 

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence report ing under clause 3 (xii) of the Order is 

not applicable to the Company. 

xiii.In our op in ion and according to the informat ion and explanations given to us, the Company 

is in compl iance w i th Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for 

all transactions w i th the related parties and the details of related party transactions have 

been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable account-

ing standards. 

xiv.During the year, the Company has not made any preferential a l lo tment or private placement 

of shares or ful ly or partly paid convert ible debentures and hence report ing under clause 3 

(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

xv. In our op in ion and according to the informat ion and explanations given to us, dur ing the year 

the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions w i th its Directors or persons 

connected to its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are 

not applicable to the Company. 
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xvi.The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 

India Act, 1934. 

A K MURALEE & CO. 

Chartered Accountants 

(Firm Registration No. 011817S) 

Sd/-

MURALEEKRISHNAN. A.K, F.C.A 

(Membership No. 217127) 

Ernakulam, 

29/05/2018 
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3 1 s t MARCH 2018 w Lacs 

Part iculars Note 
No 

A s a t 

Mar 31 ,2018 
A s a t 

March 31,2017 
A s a t 

Apri l 1,2016 

ASSETS 

Non-current assets 

(a) Property , Plant & Equip­
ment 

4 1,425.82 1,735.00 1,569.59 

(b) Capital Work in Progress 5 924.16 997.67 997.67 

(c) Financial Assets: 

(i) Non current investment 6 1,422.45 1,431.65 1,423.56 

(e) Deferred tax Assets (net) 7 2,103.17 2,155.76 1,940.75 

(f) Other Assets 8 506.62 548.50 679.95 

Total Non- Current Assets 6,382.22 6,868.58 6,611.52 

Current Assets 

(a) Inventories 9 6,906.88 4,187.98 7,507.58 

(b) Financial Assets: 

(i) TradeReceivables 10 1,415.71 801.28 849.30 

(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 6.56 15.17 17.77 

(iii) Other Balances with Banks 12 78.14 165.04 339.47 

(c) Current Tax Assets (net) 13 3.46 0.85 5.10 

(d) Other Current Assets 8 1,148.31 925.02 667.96 

Total Current Assets 9,559.06 6,095.34 9,387.18 

TOTALASSETS 15,941.28 12,963.92 15,998.70 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Equity 

a) Share Capital 14 783.00 783.00 783.00 

b) Other Equity 15 5,999.76 5,929.74 6,471.21 

TOTAL 6,782.76 6,712.74 7,254.21 

LIABILITIES 

Non Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Long te rm Borrowings 16 548.74 1,032.04 1,547.85 

(b) Provis ions 18 136.81 71.09 38.31 

Total N o n - Current Liabil i ­
t ies 

685.55 1,103.13 1,586.16 
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Current Liabil it ies 

(a) Financial Liabil it ies 

(i) Short Term Borrowings 16 2,798.08 3,034.33 3,063.52 

(ii) Trade Payables 3,022.59 1,207.88 3,233.59 

(iii) Other Financial Liabil i t ies 17 605.33 623.98 673.92 

(b) Other Current Liabil i t ies 19 2028.29 157.28 127.30 

(c) Provis ions 18 18.68 124.58 60.00 

(d) Current Tax Liabil i t ies 
(net) 

20 - - -

Total Current Liabil it ies 8,472.97 5,148.05 7,158.33 

TOTAL E Q U I T Y A N D 
LIABILIT IES 

15,941.28 12,963.92 15,998.70 

Signif icant account ing pol icies 1.C 

See a c c o m p a n y i n g notes forming part of f inancia l s ta tements 

Place : Aluva 
Date : 29.05.2018 

As per Annexed Report of even date 
Sd/-

A. K. MuRALEEKRISHNAN. B.Sc., F.C.A., DISA, MBA 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT 

Membership No. 217127 

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
R.K. Garg Dr. S.N. Sasidharan Kartha Saran S. Kartha Mathew M. Cherian G.R. Warrier A.J. Pai 
Chairman Managing Director Joint Managing Director Director Director 

Director 

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Jaya S. Kartha Anil Ananda Panicker Nabiel Mathew Cherian T.P. Thomaskutty Suresh Kumar P. 

Director Director Director Director Chief General Manager (Finance) 
S d / - & Company Secretary 

K. S. Suresh Kumar 
Chief Financial Officer 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 s t MARCH 2018 

(?) Lacs 

Part iculars Note 

No 

For the Year end ­

ed March 

3 1 , 2018 

For the Year ended 

March 3 1 , 2017 

I Sale of Products 21 16,407.83 14,906.88 

II Other Income 22 98.05 55.39 

III TOTAL I N C O M E 16,505.88 14,962.27 

IV E X P E N S E S 

Cost of material consumed 23 8946.07 7195.45 

Changes in inventor ies of f inished 

goods , wo rk in progress and s tock in 

t rade 

24 -2305.29 -102.37 

Excise duty 12.10 13.69 

Employee Costs 25 1993.41 1899.17 

F inance Costs 26 569.33 637 .68 

Deprec iat ion/amort isat ion expense 4 68.57 90.21 

Other Expenses 27 7,003.61 6,031.61 

V TOTAL E X P E N S E S 16287.80 15765.44 

Prof i t /Loss before tax (III-V) 218.08 -803.17 

VI Tax Expense: 

(1) Current Tax 0.00 0.00 

(2) Deferred Tax 84.15 (230.45) 

VII PROFIT / (LOSS) FOR T H E P E R I O D 133.93 -572.72 

VIII O T H E R C O M P R E H E N S I V E I N C O M E 

A ( i ) I tems that wil l not be reclassif ied 

to profit & loss 

(a) Remeasu remen t of def ined benef i t 

p lans-Gain/ (Loss) 

(86.27) 38.60 

(b) Net changes in fair va lues of in­

ves tments carr ied at fair va lue th rough 

OCI-Gain / (Loss) 

(9.20) 8.09 

(ii) Income tax relating to A (i) 31.56 (15.44) 

sonali.rana
Highlight

sonali.rana
Highlight
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B (i) I tems that wil l be reclassif ied to 

Profit & Loss 

(a) Others 0.00 0.00 

(ii) Income tax relat ing to B (i) 0.00 0.00 

Total Other Comprehens ive Income (63.91) 31.25 

IX TOTAL C O M P R E H E N S I V E I N C O M E 

FOR T H E P E R I O D 

70.02 -541.47 

Earnings per equi ty share (EPS) 

(Nomina l value of share Rs. 10) 

(1) Basic 1.71 -7.31 

(1) Di luted 1.71 -7.31 

Signif icant account ing pol icies 1.C 

See a c c o m p a n y i n g notes forming part of f inancia l s ta tements 

Place : Aluva 
Date : 29.05.2018 

As per Annexed Report of even date 
Sd/-

A. K. MuRALEEKRISHNAN. B.Sc., F.C.A., DISA, MBA 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT 

Membership No. 217127 

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
R.K. Garg Dr. S.N. Sasidharan Kartha Saran S. Kartha Mathew M. Cherian G.R. Warrier A.J. Pai 
Chairman Managing Director Joint Managing Director Director Director 

Director 

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Jaya S. Kartha Anil Ananda Panicker Nabiel Mathew Cherian T.P. Thomaskutty Suresh Kumar P. 

Director Director Director Director Chief General Manager (Finance) 
& Company Secretary 

Sd/-
K. S. Suresh Kumar 

Chief Financial Officer 



C O C H I N M I N E R A L S A N D RUTILE L IMITED 67 

COCHIN MINERALS AND RUTILE LIMITED 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

A EQUITY S H A R E C A P I T A L (?) in lakhs 

As at 1st Apr i l 2016 Changes dur ing the 

year 

A s at 

March 31,2017 

783.00 - 783.00 

(?) in lakhs 

As at 1st Apr i l 2017 Changes dur ing the 

year 

A s at 

March 31,2018 

783.00 - 783.00 

B O T H E R EQUITY (?) in lakhs 

P A R T I C U ­

LARS 

Reserves & Surp lus Other 

Equity 

Tota l 

Other 

Equity 

Capi ta l 

Reserve 

Investment 

subsidy 

Kerala 

govt 

Genera l 

reserve 

Reta ined 

Earnings 

FVTOCI Tota l 

Balance 

as at 1st 

Apri l 2016 

0.44 15.00 2,206.91 4,222.95 25.91 6,471.21 

Profit / 

(Loss) for 

the year 

(572.72) (572.72) 

Other 

Compre -

hensive 

Income 

25.83 5.42 31.25 

Total 

Compre -

hensive 

Income 

(546.89) 5.42 (541.47) 

Balance 

as at 

March 3 1 , 

2017 

0.44 15.00 2,206.91 3,676.06 31.33 5,929.74 
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(?) in lakhs 

P A R T I C U -

LARS 

Reserves 

& Surplus 

Other 

Equity 

Tota l 

Other 

Equity 

Capi ta l 

Reserve 

Investment 

subsidy 

Kerala 

govt 

Genera l 

reserve 

Reta ined 

Earnings 

FVTOCI Tota l 

Balance 

as at 1st 

Apr i l 2017 

0.44 15.00 2,206.91 3,676.06 31.33 5,929.74 

Profit / 

(Loss) for 

the year 

133.93 133.93 

Other 

Compre -

hensive 

Income 

(57.75) (6.16) (63.91) 

Tota l 

Compre -

hensive 

Income 

76.18 (6.16) 70.02 

Balance 

as at 

March 3 1 , 

2018 

0.44 15.00 2,206.91 3,752.24 25.17 5,999.76 
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C A S H F L O W S T A T E M E N T F O R T H E Y E A R E N D E D 3 1 S T M A R C H 2 0 1 8 
(?) Lacs 

For the Year ended 

March 31,2018 

For the year ended 

March 31,2017 

A. Cash Flow f rom Operat ing activit ies 

Profit Before Tax 218.08 (803.17) 

Adjustment For: 

Depreciat ion and amort isat ion 68.57 90.21 

Interest and div idend Income 8.07 5.66 

Finance costs 569.33 637.68 

Change in operat ing assets & liabili­

t ies: 

( Increase)/Decrease in Other assets 41.88 131.45 

( Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (2,718.90) 3,319.60 

( Increase)/Decrease in Trade Receiva­

bles 

(614.43) 48.02 

( Increase)/Decrease in Current Tax A s ­

sets 

(2.61) 4.25 

( Increase)/Decrease in Other Current 

Assets 

(223.29) (257.06) 

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables 1,814.71 (2,025.72) 

Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions (105.90) 64.58 

Increase/(Decrease) in Other f inancial 

liabilities 

(18.65) (49.94) 

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current 

Liability 

1850.46 101.36 

Net cash f low f rom operat ing activities 871.18 1,255.60 

B Cash F low From Investing Activit ies 

Interest and div idend Received 8.07 5.66 

Investment in PPE (41.77) (256.58) 

Refund received on CWIP 73.51 -

Sale of PPE 282.38 0.97 

Investment in intangibles - -

Other bank balances 86.90 174.43 

Net cash f low f rom Investing Activit ies 409.09 (75.52) 

C Cash f lows f rom f inancing activit ies 

Proceeds f rom Term Loan (net) (483.30) (515.81) 

Cash credit (236.25) (29.19) 

Interest paid (569.33) (637.68) 
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Net cash f low f rom f inancing activit ies (1,288.88) (1,182.68) 

Net Increase in cash and cash equiva­

lents (A+B+C) 
(8.61) (2.60) 

Cash and cash equivalents at the be­

ginning of the year 

15.17 17.77 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end 

of the year 

6.56 15.17 

IND AS RECONCIL IAT ION OF F INANCIAL LIABILITY: 

B O B Corpo­

rate Loan 

Open ing 

Balance 

N E T Pro­

ceeds 

Transact ion 

Cost 

EIR IM­

PACT 

C L O S I N G 

B A L A N C E 

2016-17 1,530.45 499.20 NIL 13.21 1,032.04 

2017-18 1,032.04 499.20 NIL 44.74 548.74 

2017-18 2016-17 

F O R E I G N R E C E I V A B L E 1,123.01 618.35 

E X C H A N G E RATE D I F F E R E N C E IMPACT 2.08 2.75 

C L O S I N G F O R E I G N R E C E I V A B L E 1,120.93 615.60 

Figures in bracket indicate cash out f lows / deduct ions. 

See a c c o m p a n y i n g notes forming part of the f inancial s ta tements 

Place : Aluva 
Date : 29.05.2018 

As per Annexed Report of even date 
Sd/-

A. K. MuRALEEKRISHNAN. B.Sc., F.C.A., DISA, MBA 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT 

Membership No. 217127 

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
R.K. Garg Dr. S.N. Sasidharan Kartha Saran S. Kartha Mathew M. Cherian G.R. Warrier A.J. Pai 
Chairman Managing Director Joint Managing Director Director Director 

Director 

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Jaya S. Kartha Anil Ananda Panicker Nabiel Mathew Cherian T.P. Thomaskutty Suresh Kumar P. 

Director Director Director Director Chief General Manager (Finance) 
S d / - & Company Secretary 

K. S. Suresh Kumar 
Chief Financial Officer 
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1. Notes to f inancia l s ta tements for the per iod ended 31st March 2018 

A . C O R P O R A T E I N F O R M A T I O N 

Cochin Minerals and Ruti le Ltd is a publ ic l imited company incorporated in India. Its shares 
are listed in Bombay stock e x c h a n g e . The C o m p a n y is engaged in the manufacture of 
Synthet ic Rut i le , Ferr ic Ch lor ide , Ferrous Chlor ide, Iron Hydrox ide (Cemox) , Recovered 
Ti02 and Recovered Upg raded i lmeni te . 

B. S T A N D A R D S ISSUED B U T N O T Y E T EFFECTIVE 

The MCA has notif ied IND AS 115 "Revenue f rom contract wi th customers" . I t shal l come 
into force w.e.f 01 .04 .2018 . The C o m p a n y intends to adopt these s tandards w h e n they 
become ef fect ive. 

C. S I G N I F I C A N T A C C O U N T I N G POLIC IES (1-14) 

1 . BASIS OF PREPARATION 

The f inancia l s ta tements have been prepared in accordance wi th Indian Account ing S tand­
ards (Ind AS) notif ied under the Compan ies (Indian Account ing Standards) Rules ,2015 
and wi th Compan ies ( Indian Account ing Standards) (amendment ) Rules ,2016 and com­
ply in all mater ia l aspects wi th the relevant provis ions of the Compan ies Ac t ,2013. 

The f inancial s ta tements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the fol-
lowing assets and liabilit ies wh ich have been measured at fair va lue : 

• Certa in f inancial assets and liabilit ies measured at fair va lue (refer account ing policy 
regarding f inancial instruments) 

The f inancial s ta tements are presented in INR and all va lues are rounded to the nearest 
lakhs ( INR 00,000) , except as otherwise indicated. 

2 . F IXED A S S E T S 

2.1 Property, Plant and Equipment 

The cost of an i tem of property, plant and equ ipment is recognized as an asset if, and only 
if: 

(a) i t is probable that future economic benef i ts assoc ia ted wi th the i tem wil l 
f low to the entity; and 

(b) the cost of the i tem can be measured reliably. 

Fixed Asse ts are stated at acquisi t ion cost less accumula ted depreciat ion / amort izat ion 
(except leasehold land) and cumulat ive impairment . 

Technical know-how / l icense fee relat ing to plants/faci l i t ies are capi ta l ised as part of cost 
of the under ly ing asset. 

Spare parts are capi ta l ized w h e n they meet the def ini t ion of PPE, i.e., w h e n the company 
intends to use these dur ing more than a period of 12 months . 

The acquisi t ion of property, plant and equ ipment , direct ly increasing the future economic 
benefi ts of any part icular exist ing i tem of property, plant and equ ipment , wh ich are neces­
sary for the C o m p a n y to obtain the future economic benef i ts f rom its other assets, are 
recognized as assets. 

2.2 Capital Stores 

Capital s tores are va lued at cost. Speci f ic provis ion is made for l ikely d iminut ion in value, 
whereve r required. 
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2.3 Intangible Assets 

Costs incurred on compute r sof tware purchased/deve loped result ing in future economic 
benef i ts, are capi tal ised as Intangible Asset and amort ised over a period of three years 
beginning f rom the quar te r in wh ich such sof tware is cap i ta l ised. 

Gains or losses arising f rom derecogni t ion of an intangible asset are measured as the dif-
ference between the net d isposa l p roceeds and the carry ing amount of the asset and are 
recognised in the s ta tement of profit or loss w h e n the asset is derecogn ised 

2.4 Depreciat ion/Amort izat ion 

Cost of tangib le f ixed assets (net of residual value) is deprec ia ted on straight- l ine method 
as per the useful life prescr ibed in Schedu le II to the Compan ies Act , 2013 .Assets cost­
ing upto Rs.5,000/-per i tem are deprec ia ted fully in the year of capi ta l izat ion. Spares are 
deprec iated up to 9 5 % over the remain ing life of the main asset . 

The C o m p a n y deprec ia tes componen ts of the main asset that are signi f icant in value and 
have dif ferent useful l ives as compared to the main asset separately. The company depre­
ciates genera l spares over the life of the spare f rom the date i t is avai lable for use. Such 
deprec iat ion of componen t capital spares are capi ta l ised through CWIP to the extent that 
such assets are used in the deve lopment of other assets. 

The residual va lues, useful l ives and methods of deprec iat ion of property, plant and equip­
ment are rev iewed at each f inancial year end and adjusted prospect ively, i f appropr ia te. 

The est imated useful l ives of tangib le and intangibles are : 

Type of asset Method Useful lives 

Bui lding Straight line 30 years 

Plant & Mach inery Straight line 8 years 

Furni ture & Fixtures Straight line 10 years 

Off ice Equ ipments Straight line 5 years 

Other Equ ipments 

Compute rs Straight line 3 years 

Sof tware Straight line 3 years 

Vehic les & Mater ia ls Han­
dl ing equ ipments 

Straight line 8 years 

3. L E A S E S 

C o m p a n y does not have any operat ing or f inance leases. 

4 . I M P A I R M E N T OF N O N F I N A N C I A L A S S E T S 

C o m p a n y assesses , at each report ing da te , whe the r there is an indicat ion that an asset 
may be impai red. I f any indicat ion exists, or w h e n annua l impai rment test ing for an asset is 
required, the C o m p a n y est imates the asset 's recoverable amount . An asset 's recoverable 
amount is the h igher of an asset 's or cash generat ing unit 's fair va lue less costs of d isposal 
and its value in use . Impai rment is recognised w h e n the carry ing amoun t of an asset ex-
ceeds recoverable amoun t . 
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5 . B O R R O W I N G C O S T 

Bor row ing costs that are attr ibutable to the acquisi t ion and construct ion of the qual i fy ing 
asset are capi ta l ised as part of the cost of such assets. A qual i fy ing asset is one that nec-
essar i ly takes substant ia l per iod of t ime to get ready for in tended use. Al l o ther borrowing 
costs are charged to revenue 

6 . INVENTORIES 

6.1 Stores and Spares 

6.1.1 Stores and Spares are va lued at we igh ted average cost and are carr ied at the 
lower of cost or net real isable va lue. Speci f ic provis ion is made in respect of identif ied ob-
solete s tores & spares and chemica ls for l ikely d iminut ion in va lue. 

6.1.2 Stores & Spares in transi t are va lued at cost. 

7. P R O V I S I O N S , C O N T I N G E N T LIABILIT IES & CAPITAL C O M M I T M E N T S 

7.1 Provis ions 

7 .1 .1 . Provis ions are recognized w h e n the C o m p a n y has a present obl igat ion ( legal or 
construct ive) as a result of a past event , it is probable that an out f low of resources embody­
ing economic benef i ts wil l be required to sett le the obl igat ion and a rel iable est imate can be 
made of the amount o f the obl igat ion. 

7.1.2 W h e n the C o m p a n y expects some or all of a provis ion to be re imbursed, re im-
bursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only w h e n the re imbursement is vir tual ly 
certain. The expense relat ing to a provis ion is presented in the s ta tement of profit and loss 
net of any re imbursement . 

7.1.3 I f the effect of the t ime value of money is mater ia l , provis ions are d iscounted using 
a current pre- tax rate that ref lects, w h e n appropr iate, the risks speci f ic to the liability. When 
d iscount ing is used , the increase in the provision due to the passage of t ime is recognised 
as a finance cost. 

7.1.4 Decommiss ion ing Liabil ity 

Decommiss ion ing costs are provided at the present va lue of expected costs to sett le the 
obl igat ion using est imated cash f lows and are recognised as part of the cost of the par­
t icular asset . The cash f lows are d iscounted at a current pre-tax rate that ref lects the risks 
speci f ic to the decommiss ion ing liability. The unwinding of the d iscount is expensed as 
incurred and recognised in the s ta tement of profit and loss as a f inance cost. The est i­
mated future costs of decommiss ion ing are rev iewed annual ly and adjusted as appropr i -
ate. Changes in the est imated future costs or in the d iscount rate appl ied are added to or 
deduc ted f rom the cost of the asset. 

7.2 Cont ingent Liabil i t ies 

7.2.1 Show-cause Not ices issued by var ious Government Author i t ies are not cons idered 
as Obl igat ion. 

7.2.2 W h e n the d e m a n d not ices are raised against such show cause not ices and are 
d isputed by the Company , these are classif ied as d isputed obl igat ions. 

7.2.3 The t reatment in respect of d isputed obl igat ions are as under: 

a) a provision is recognized in respect of present obl igat ions where the out-
f low of resources is probable; 
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b) all o ther cases are d isc losed as cont ingent l iabil it ies unless the possibi l i ty 

of out f low of resources is remote. 

7.3 Capital Commi tmen ts 

Est imated amount of contracts remain ing to be executed on capi tal account are considered 
for d isc losure. 

8 . R E V E N U E R E C O G N I T I O N 

8.1 Revenue is recognised to the extent that i t is probable that the economic benefi ts 
wil l f low to the C o m p a n y and the revenue can be rel iably measured , regardless of w h e n 
the payment is being made . Revenue is measured at the fair va lue of the considerat ion 
received or receivable tak ing into account contractual ly def ined te rms of payment and 
exc luding taxes or dut ies col lected on behal f of the government . Excise duty appl icable 
for the period Apr i l to June 2017 has been grossed up in revenue and also d isc losed in 
Expendi ture. 

8.2 Revenue is recognised w h e n the signif icant risks and rewards of ownersh ip have been 
t ransferred to the customer, recovery of the considerat ion is probable, the assoc ia ted costs 
and possible return of goods can be est imated reliably, there is no cont inuing managemen t 
invo lvement wi th the goods and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue 
is measured at the fair va lue of the considerat ion received or receivable, net of returns and 
a l lowances, t rade d iscounts and vo lume rebates. 

8.3 Interest income is recognised on t ime proport ionate basis taking into account the 
amoun t outs tanding and the rate appl icable. 

9 . TAXES ON I N C O M E 

9.1 Current Income Tax: 

Provis ion for current tax is made as per the provis ions of the Income Tax Act , 1 9 6 1 . 

Current income tax assets and liabilit ies are measured at the amount expected to be recov-
ered f rom or paid to the taxat ion authori t ies. 

9.2 Deferred Tax: 

9.2.1 Deferred tax is provided using the Ba lance Sheet method on temporary di f ferences 
between the tax base of assets and liabil it ies and their carry ing amounts for f inancia l re-
port ing purposes at the report ing dates. 

9.2.2. Deferred tax liabil it ies are recognised for all taxable temporary di f ferences. 

9.2.3 Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deduct ib le temporary d i f ferences, the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax asset is recognised 
to the extent i t is probable that taxab le profit wi l l be avai lable against wh ich deduct ib le t em­
porary di f ferences and carry forward of unused tax di f ferences and unused tax losses can 
be ut i l ised. 

9.2.4. Deferred tax assets and liabil it ies are measured based on tax rates ( and tax laws) 
that have been enacted or substant ive ly enac ted at the report ing date. 

9.2.5 The carry ing amoun t of deferred income tax assets is rev iewed at each report ing date 
and reduced to the extent that i t is no longer probable that suff ic ient taxable profits wil l be 
avai lable to al low all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be ut i l ised. 

9.2.6 Deferred tax relat ing to i tems recognised outs ide profit or loss is recognised outside 
profit or loss (either in OCI or equity) 
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1 0 . E M P L O Y E E S BENEFITS 

10.1 Short t e rm benefi ts: 

Short t e rm benef i ts are accounted for in the per iod dur ing wh ich the serv ices have been 
rendered . 

10.2 Post -employment benefits and other long term employee benefi ts: 

(i) Def ined contr ibut ion plans: The costs of the benef i ts are recognised 
as expense /CWIP w h e n the employees have rendered serv ices entit l ing 
t hem to the benef i ts. 

(i i) C o m p e n s a t e d a b s e n c e s : Such costs wh ich are not expected to occur 
wi th in 12 months are recognised as actuarial ly de termined liability at the 
present value of the def ined benefi t obl igat ion at the date of each f inancial 
s ta tement . 

(iii) Def ined Benefi t P lans :The cost of providing benef i ts are de te rmined us-
ing the projected unit credit method of actuar ial va luat ions made at the 
date of each f inancia l s tatement. . 

10.3 Remeasurements 

Remeasu remen ts , compr is ing of Actuar ia l ga ins and losses are recognised in Other Com-
prehensive Income in the period in wh ich they occur and are not reclassi f ied to profit and 
loss in subsequen t per iods. 

Past serv ice costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earl ier of: 

• The date of the plan amendmen t or curta i lment, and 

• The date that the C o m p a n y recognises related restructur ing costs 

1. Reconci l ia t ion of Gratui ty (?) Lacs 

Part iculars March 3 1 , 2018 March 3 1 , 2017 

C H A N G E I N B E N E F I T O B ­
L IGATION: 

Benefi t obl igat ion (begin­
ning) 

312.91 323.64 

Serv ice cost 21.84 17.59 

Interest Expense or cost 24.29 24.93 

Actuar ia l (gain)/ loss 87.39 (38.61) 

Benefit Obl igat ion ( at the 
end) 

402.73 312.91 

C H A N G E IN P L A N A S ­
S E T S 

Fair va lue (beginning) 354.38 325.99 

Interest income (17.29) 28.39 

Fair value ( at the end) 337.09 354.38 
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E X P E N S E S R E C O G N I S E D 
IN S T A T E M E N T OF P R O F ­
IT & L O S S 

Serv ice Cost 21.84 17.59 

Net interest cost (0.99) (8.67) 

Total 20.84 8.92 

E X P E N S E S R E C O G N I S E D 
IN OCI 

48.78 (38.61) 

Re measu remen t o f ac tu­
arial gains/( losses) 

48.78 (38.61) 

A S S U M P T I O N S : 

Discount rate (per annum) 7 .5% p.a 7 .5% p.a 

Salary growth rate ( per an ­
num) 

4 . 0 0 % p.a 5 .00% p.a 

Mortal i ty rate( % of IALM of 
06-08) 

ILM(1994-96) Ult ILM(1994-96) Ult 

Wi thdrawal rate 8% p.a 8% p.a 

11 . C U R R E N T V E R S U S N O N C U R R E N T CLASSIF ICATION 

11.1 The C o m p a n y presents assets and liabilit ies in the balance sheet based on current/ 
non- current c lassi f icat ion. 

11.2 An asset is t reated as current w h e n it is: 

* Expected to be real ised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal 
operat ing cycle or is held for t rad ing 

* Expected to be real ised wi th in twe lve months after the report ing per iod, or 

* Cash or cash equivalent unless restr icted f rom being exchanged or used 
to sett le a liability for at least twe lve months after the report ing date. 

All o ther assets are classif ied as non- current. 

11.2 A Liabil i ty is current w h e n : 

* Expected to be real ised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal 
operat ing cycle or is held for t rad ing 

* It is due to be sett led wi th in twe lve months after the report ing 
per iod, or 

* There is no uncondi t ional right to defer the set t lement of the l i 
abil ity for at least twe lve months after the report ing date. 

All o ther l iabil it ies are classif ied as non current 

12 .F INANCIAL I N S T R U M E N T S : 

12.1 Financial Assets 

Initial recogni t ion and measurement 

All f inancial assets are recognised initially at fair va lue plus, in the case of f inancial assets 
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not recorded at fair va lue th rough profit or loss, t ransact ion costs that are attr ibutable to the 
acquisi t ion of the f inancial asset. 

Subsequent measurement 

For purposes of subsequen t measurement , f inancial assets are classif ied in four catego-
ries: 

o Financial Asse ts at amor t ised cost 

o Debt inst ruments at fair va lue through other comprehens ive income (FV-
TOCI) 

o Equity inst ruments at fair va lue through other comprehens ive income (FV-

TOCI) 

o Financial assets and der ivat ives at fair va lue th rough profit or loss (FVTPL) 

12.1.1 Financial Asse ts at amor t ised cost 

A financial asset is measured at the amort ised cost i f both the fo l lowing condi t ions are met: 

a) The asset is held wi th in a business model whose object ive is to hold assets for col lect ing 
contractual cash f lows, and 

b) Contractua l te rms of the asset g ive rise on speci f ied dates to cash f lows that are solely 
payments of pr incipal and interest (SPPI) on the pr incipal amount outs tanding. 

After initial measurement , such f inancial assets are subsequent ly measured at amort ised 
cost using the effect ive interest rate (EIR) method . Amor t i sed cost is calculated by taking 
into account any d iscount or p remium on acquis i t ion and fees or costs that are an integral 
part of the EIR. The EIR amort isat ion is inc luded in f inance income in the profit or loss. The 
losses arising f rom impai rment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category general ly 
appl ies to t rade and other receivables. 

12.1.2 Debt instrument at FVTOCI 

A 'debt inst rument ' is classif ied as at the FVTOCI if both of the fol lowing criteria are met: 

a) The object ive of the bus iness model is ach ieved both by col lect ing contractual cash 
f lows and sel l ing the f inancia l assets , and 

b) The asset 's contractual cash f lows represent SPPI . 

Debt inst ruments included with in the FVTOCI category are measured initially as wel l as at 
each report ing date at fair va lue. Fair va lue movemen ts are recognized in the other c o m -
prehens ive income (OCI) . However , the company recognizes interest income, impai rment 
losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&L. On derecogni t ion of the 
asset, cumulat ive gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassif ied f rom the equi ty to 
P&L. Interest earned whi ls t holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income 
using the EIR method . 

12.1.3 Equity investments at FVTOCI 

All equi ty investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair va lue. The company 
has made an i r revocable elect ion to present subsequen t changes in the fair va lue in other 
comprehens ive income, exc luding d iv idends. The classi f icat ion is made on initial recogni -
t ion/transi t ion and is i r revocable. 

There is no recycl ing of the amounts f rom OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment . How-
ever, the company may t ransfer the cumulat ive gain or loss wi th in equity. 
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12.1.4 Debt inst ruments and der ivat ives at F V T P L 

FVTPL is a residual category. Any f inancial asset , wh ich does not meet the criteria for cat­
egor izat ion as at amor t ized cost or as FVTOCI , is classif ied as at FVTPL. 

This category also includes der ivat ive f inancial inst ruments entered into by the company 
that are not des ignated as hedging inst ruments in hedge relat ionships as def ined by Ind 
A S 109. 

In addi t ion, the company may elect to des ignate a debt instrument, wh ich otherwise meets 
amort ized cost or FVTOCI cri teria, as at FVTPL . However, such elect ion is a l lowed only 
i f do ing so reduces or e l iminates a measuremen t or recognit ion inconsistency (referred to 
as 'account ing mismatch ' ) . The company has not des ignated any debt inst rument as at 
FVTPL. 

Debt inst ruments included wi th in the FVTPL category are measured at fair va lue wi th all 
changes recognized in theP&L. 

12.1.5 Derecogni t ion 

A financial asset (or, where appl icable, a part of a financial asset or part of a g roup of s imi lar 
f inancia l assets) is pr imari ly derecogn ised (i.e. removed f rom the balance sheet) when : 

• The rights to receive cash f lows f rom the asset have expi red, or 

• The company has t ransferred its r ights to receive cash f lows f rom the asset or has 
assumed an obl igat ion to pay the received cash f lows in full w i thout mater ia l delay 
to a third party under a 'pass- through ' a r rangement ; and ei ther (a) the company 
has t ransferred substant ia l ly all the risks and rewards of the asset , or (b) the c o m -
pany has neither t ransferred nor retained substant ia l ly all the risks and rewards of 
the asset, but has t ransferred control of the asset. 

W h e n the company has t ransferred its r ights to receive cash f lows f rom an asset or has en­
tered into a pass- through ar rangement , it eva luates if and to wha t extent it has retained the 
risks and rewards of ownersh ip . W h e n i t has nei ther t ransferred nor retained substant ia l ly 
all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor t ransferred control of the asset , the company 
cont inues to recognise the t ransferred asset to the extent of the company 's cont inuing 
involvement. In that case, the company also recognises an assoc ia ted liability. The t rans­
ferred asset and the assoc ia ted liability are measured on a basis that ref lects the rights and 
obl igat ions that the company has reta ined. 

Cont inuing invo lvement that takes the fo rm of a guaran tee over the t ransferred asset 
is measured at the lower of the original carry ing amount of the asset and the m a x i m u m 
amount of considerat ion that the company could be required to repay. 

12.1.6 Impairment of f inancial assets 

In accordance wi th Ind AS 109, the company appl ies expected credit loss (ECL) model 
for measu remen t and recogni t ion of impai rment loss on the fo l lowing f inancial assets and 
credit risk exposure : 

a) Financial assets that are debt inst ruments, and are measured at amor t ised cost e.g., 
loans, debt secur i t ies, deposi ts , t rade receivables and bank balance 

b) Financial guarantee contracts wh ich are not measured as at FVTPL 

c) Lease receivables under Ind AS 17 

The company fo l lows 'simpli f ied approach ' for recogni t ion of impai rment loss a l lowance on 
Trade receivables that do not contain a signi f icant f inancing component . 
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The appl icat ion of s impl i f ied approach does not require the C o m p a n y to t rack changes in 
credit risk. Rather, i t recognises impai rment loss a l lowance based on l i fetime ECLs at each 
report ing date, right f rom its initial recogni t ion. 

For recogni t ion of impai rment loss on other f inancia l assets and risk exposure , the com­
pany determines that whe the r there has been a signi f icant increase in the credit risk s ince 
initial recogni t ion. If credit risk has not increased signif icantly, 12-month ECL is used to pro­
vide for impai rment loss. However, i f credit risk has increased signif icantly, l i fet ime ECL is 
used. If, in a subsequen t per iod, credit qual i ty of the inst rument improves such that there is 
no longer a s igni f icant increase in credit risk s ince initial recogni t ion, then the enti ty reverts 
to recognis ing impai rment loss a l lowance based on 12-month ECL. 

Li fet ime ECL are the expected credit losses result ing f rom all possible defaul t events over 
the expected life of a f inancial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a port ion of the lifetime 
ECL wh ich results f rom defaul t events that are possible wi th in 12 months after the report-
ing date. 

ECL is the di f ference between all contractual cash f lows that are due to the company in ac­
cordance wi th the contract and all the cash f lows that the enti ty expects to receive (i.e., all 
cash short fal ls) , d iscounted at the original EIR. W h e n est imat ing the cash f lows, an entity 
is required to consider: 

• Al l contractual te rms of the f inancial instrument ( including p repayment extens ion, 
call and s imi lar opt ions) over the expected life of the f inancial instrument. How­
ever, in rare cases w h e n the expected life of the f inancial inst rument cannot be 
est imated reliably, then the enti ty is required to use the remain ing contractual t e rm 
of the f inancial inst rument 

• Cash f lows f rom the sale of col lateral held or other credit enhancements that are 
integral to the contractual te rms 

As a pract ical expedient , the C o m p a n y uses a provis ion matr ix to determine impai rment 
loss a l lowance on portfol io of its t rade receivables. The provis ion matr ix is based on its 
historical ly observed defaul t rates over the expected life of the t rade receivables and is ad ­
jus ted for forward- looking est imates. At every report ing date, the historical observed defaul t 
rates are updated and changes in the forward- look ing est imates are ana lysed. 

ECL impai rment loss a l lowance (or reversal) recognized dur ing the period is recognized as 
income/ expense in the s ta tement of profit and loss (P&L) . The balance sheet presentat ion 
for var ious f inancial inst ruments is descr ibed below: 

• Financial assets measured as at amor t ised cost: ECL is presented as an al low-
ance, i.e., as an integral part of the measuremen t of those assets in the balance 
sheet. The a l lowance reduces the net carry ing amount . Unti l the asset meets wr i te-
off cr i teria, the company does not reduce impai rment a l lowance f rom the gross 
carry ing amount . 

• Financial guaran tee contracts: ECL is presented as a provis ion in the balance 
sheet, i.e. as a liability. 

• Debt inst ruments measured at FVTOCI : S ince f inancial assets are a l ready reflect­
ed at fair va lue, impai rment a l lowance is not fur ther reduced f rom its va lue. Rather, 
ECL amoun t is presented as 'accumula ted impai rment amount ' in the OCI 

12.2 Financial liabilities 

12.2.1 Initial recognit ion and measurement . 

Financial l iabil it ies are c lassi f ied, at initial recogni t ion, as f inancial l iabil it ies at fair value 



C O C H I N M I N E R A L S A N D RUTILE L IMITED 80 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
th rough profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, as appropr iate. 

All f inancial l iabilit ies are recognised initially at fair va lue and , in the case of loans and bor­
rowings and payables, net of direct ly at tr ibutable t ransact ion costs. 

The Company ' s f inancia l l iabil it ies include t rade and other payables, loans and borrowings 
including f inancia l guarantee contracts. 

12.2.2 Subsequent m e a s u r e m e n t 

The measuremen t of f inancia l l iabil it ies depends on their c lassi f icat ion, as descr ibed below: 

A. Financial liabilities at fair value th rough profit or loss 

Financial l iabil it ies at fair va lue th rough profit or loss include f inancial l iabilit ies held for 
t rading and f inancial l iabil it ies des ignated upon initial recogni t ion as at fair va lue through 
profit or loss. Financial l iabil it ies are classi f ied as held for t rading i f they are incurred for the 
purpose of repurchas ing in the near t e rm. This category also includes der ivat ive f inancial 
inst ruments entered into by the company that are not des ignated as hedging inst ruments 
in hedge relat ionships as def ined by Ind AS 109. 

Gains or losses on liabilit ies held for t rad ing are recognised in the profit or loss. 

B. Financial liabilities at amor t ised cost: 

Financial l iabil it ies that are not held for t rad ing and are not des ignated at FVTPL are meas­
ured at amor t ised cost at the end of subsequen t account ing per iods based on the Effective 
Interest Rate (EIR) method . Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss w h e n the 
liabil it ies are derecogn ised as wel l as th rough the EIR amort isat ion process. 

Amor t i sed cost is calculated by tak ing into account any d iscount or p remium on acquisi t ion 
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amort isat ion is inc luded as 
f inance costs in the s ta tement of profit and loss. 

This category general ly appl ies to borrowings. The EIR amort isat ion has been calculated 
based on the managemen ts percept ion of cash outf low wh ich is based on expected pro­
gress of the project. 

C. Financial guarantee contracts 

Financia l guarantee contracts issued by the C o m p a n y are those contracts that require a 
payment to be made to re imburse the holder for a loss i t incurs because the speci f ied debt-
or fails to make a payment w h e n due in accordance wi th the te rms of a debt instrument. 
Financial guaran tee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair va lue, adjusted 
for t ransact ion costs that are direct ly at tr ibutable to the issuance of the guaran tee . Subse-
quently, the liability is measured at the h igher of the amount of loss a l lowance determined 
as per impai rment requi rements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulat ive 
amort isat ion. 

12.2.3 Derecogni t ion 

A financial liability is derecogn ised w h e n the obl igat ion under the liability is d ischarged or 
cancel led or expires. W h e n an exist ing f inancial liability is replaced by another f rom the 
s a m e lender on substant ia l ly di f ferent te rms, or the te rms of an exist ing liability are sub-
stantial ly modi f ied, such an exchange or modi f icat ion is t reated as the derecogni t ion of the 
original liability and the recogni t ion of a new liability. The di f ference in the respect ive carry-
ing amounts is recognised in the s ta tement of profit or loss. 

12.2.4 Offsett ing of f inancial instruments 

Financial assets and f inancial l iabil it ies are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
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consol idated balance sheet i f there is a current ly enforceable legal right to offset the recog-
nised amounts and there is an intention to sett le on a net basis, to real ise the assets and 
sett le the liabilit ies s imul taneously. 

13. C A S H A N D C A S H E Q U I V A L E N T S 

Cash and cash equiva lents in the balance sheet compr ise cash at banks and in hand and 
short te rm depos i ts wi th an original matur i ty of three months or less, wh ich are subject to 
an insignif icant risk of changes in va lue. 

14. FAIR V A L U E M E A S U R E M E N T 

14.1 Fair va lue is the price that wou ld be received to sell an asset or paid to t ransfer a l i-
abil i ty in an order ly t ransact ion between market part ic ipants at the measuremen t date at 
each balance sheet date in the pr incipal market or most advan tageous market assuming 
that market part ic ipants act in their economic interest. 

14.2 A fair va lue measuremen t of a non financial asset takes into account a market part ici­
pant 's abil i ty to genera te economic benef i ts by using the asset in its h ighest and best use 
or by sel l ing i t to another market part ic ipant that wou ld use the asset in its h ighest and best 
use using techn iques wh ich are appropr ia te and for wh ich suff ic ient data is avai lable. 

14.3 Fair va lue hierarchy: 

LEVEL 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market pr ices in act ive markets for ident ical assets or li-
abi l i t ies. 

LEVEL 2: Valuat ion techn iques for wh ich the lowest level input that is signi f icant to the fair 
va lue measuremen t is direct ly or indirectly observab le . 

L E V E L 3: Others including using external va luers as required 

2 . S I G N I F I C A N T A C C O U N T I N G J U D G E M E N T S , EST IMATES A N D A S S U M P T I O N S 

The preparat ion o f Company ' s f inanc ia l s ta tements requires managemen t to make judge­
ments , est imates and assumpt ions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expens-
es, assets and liabil it ies and accompany ing d isc losures and the d isc losure of cont ingent 
l iabil i t ies. Uncer ta in ty about these assumpt ions and est imates could result in ou tcomes 
that require a mater ia l ad jus tment to the carry ing amount of assets and liabilit ies affected 
in future per iods. The C o m p a n y cont inual ly eva luates these est imates and assumpt ions 
based on the most recent ly avai lable in format ion. Rev is ions to account ing est imates are 
recognised prospect ively in the s ta tement of profit and loss in the per iod in wh ich the est i-
mates are revised and in any future per iods a t tached. 

2.1 C O N T I N G E N C I E S 

The assessment of the ex is tence and potent ial quan tum of cont ingenc ies inherent ly in-
volves the exerc ise of s igni f icant j udgemen t and the use of est imates regarding the out-
come of future events . 

3. Explanat ion for t ransi t ion to IND A S : 

The transi t ion as at 1st Apr i l 2016 to IND AS w a s carr ied out f rom previous G A A P as ex-
plained below: 

First-t ime adopt ion of Ind AS 

These f inanc ia l s ta tements , for the year ended 31 March 2018 , are the f i rs t the C o m p a n y 
has prepared in accordance wi th Ind A S . For per iods up to and including the year ended 31 
March 2017 , the C o m p a n y prepared its f inancia l s ta tements in accordance wi th account­
ing s tandards notif ied under sect ion 133 of the Compan ies Ac t 2013 , read together with 
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paragraph 7 of the Compan ies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP) . 

Accordingly, the C o m p a n y has prepared f inanc ia l s ta tements wh ich comply wi th Ind AS 
appl icable for per iods ending on 31 March 2018, together with the comparat ive per iod data 
as at and for the year ended 31 March 2017 , as descr ibed in the s u m m a r y of s igni f icant ac­
count ing pol ic ies. In prepar ing these f inancia l s ta tements , the Company ' s opening balance 
sheet w a s prepared as at 1 Apr i l 2016 , the Company 's date of t ransi t ion to Ind A S . This 
note expla ins exempt ions avai led by the C o m p a n y in restat ing its Indian G A A P f inancial 
s ta tements , including the balance sheet as at 1 Apr i l 2016 and the f inancial s ta tements as 
at and for the year ended 31 March 2017. 

In prepar ing these IND AS f inanc ia ls s ta tements C M R L has c la imed certain exempt ions 
and except ions wi th the result ing di f ference as at the transit ion date and Previous G A A P 
being recognised direct ly in Other Equity 

Exempt ions appl ied: 

3.1 Mandatory exempt ions f rom retrospect ive appl icat ion; 

a ) Est imate 

The est imates at 1st Apr i l 2016 and at 31 March 2017 are consistent with 
those made for the same dates in accordance wi th Indian G A A P (after 
ad justments to reflect any d i f ferences in account ing policies) . 

The est imates used by the Company to present these amounts in accord-
ance wi th Ind AS reflect condi t ions at 1 Apr i l 2016 , the date of t ransi t ion to 
Ind AS and as of 31 March 2017. 

b) Derecogni t ion of f inancial assets: 

The company has appl ied the de-recogni t ion requi rements in Ind AS 109 
prospect ively for t ransact ions occurr ing on or after the date of t ransi t ion to 
Ind A S . 

c) Classi f icat ion and m e a s u r e m e n t of f inancial assets: 

F inancia l Instruments: 

a. Investments In Equity shares have been measured at Fair Value 
Through OCI (FVTOCI) s ince C M R L has taken an i r revocable decis ion 
regarding the same . At the date of t ransi t ion the di f ference between 
Fair va lue and previous G A A P value has been recognised in OCI net 
off deferred tax. 

b. Investments in unquoted equi ty shares of Kerala Enviro Infrastructure 
Ltd has been assumed to be at Fair va lue wh ich is equal to cost. 

c. Other f inancial assets has been classif ied and measured at amort ised 
cost on the basis of the facts and c i rcumstances that exist at the date 
of t ransi t ion to Ind A S . 

d. Loans and borrowings : Transact ion costs are included in the initial rec­
ognit ion of f inancial liability and charged to S ta tement of Profit & loss 
account using the effective interest rate method . 
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3.2 Opt ional exempt ions avai led: 

a . D e e m e d cost -Prev ious G A A P carry ing amount : (PPE and Intangible) 

C o m p a n y has opted to measure the Property Plant & Equ ipment and Capital 
work in progress as at d e e m e d cost at the date of t ransi t ion to IND A S , m e a s -
ured as per the previous G A A P 

b. Investment in subsid iar ies , Joint ventures and associa tes: 

C o m p a n y has elected to cont inue with the carry ing value of its Assoc ia te and Society as 
recognised in the f inancia l s ta tements as per previous G A A P va lue. 

3.3 Notes to the reconci l iat ions 

a. S ince, i t is impract icable for the Company to apply retrospect ively the effect ive 
interest method in Ind AS 109, the fair va lue of the f inancial asset or the f inancial 
liability (except for Long Term Borrowings) at the date of t ransi t ion to Ind AS by 
apply ing amort ised cost me thod , has been cons idered as the new gross carry ing 
amount of that f inancial asset or the f inancial l iability at the date of t ransi t ion to Ind 
A S . 

b. Deferred tax is accounted using the balance sheet approach wh ich focuses on 
the temporary di f ferences between the carry ing amount of assets or liability in the 
Ba lance Sheet wi th its tax base. 

c .Employee benefi ts: Actuar ia l ga ins / losses are recognised through Other C o m -
prehens ive Income. 

3.4 Reconci l iat ions b e t w e e n previous G A A P and IND AS 

(i) Equity reconci l iat ions (?) Lacs 

Part iculars As at 31st March 
2017 

As at 1st Apri l 
2016 

As reported under previous G A A P 58,88.38 64,40.54 

Actuar ia l valuat ion of gratui ty charged to OCI +50.39 +11.79 

Actuar ia l valuat ion of gratui ty charged to P&L -8.92 0 

- Fair va lue gain /( loss) on equity inst ruments +46.79 +38.70 

- Impact relating to borrowings recorded at amor­
t ised cost method using EIR 

-28.83 -7.03 

Deferred tax impact -18.07 -12.79 

Equity Under Ind AS 59,29.74 64,71.21 

ii) Total Comprehens ive Income reconci l iat ions: (?) Lacs 

Part iculars A s at 31st Mar 2017 

Net Profit as per previous G A A P ( Indian G A A P ) -552.16 

Actuar ia l valuat ion of gratui ty charged to P&L -8.92 

Impact relating to borrowings recorded at amor t ised cost method 
using EIR 

-21.80 

Effect of deferred taxes on above ad jus tments 10.16 
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Net Profit for the per iod as per Ind AS -572.72 

Other Comprehens ive income: 

Effect for measur ing investments at fair va lue th rough profit and 
loss 

+8.09 

Actuar ia l (gain)/ loss on emp loyee def ined benefi t funds recog­
nised in Other Comprehens ive Income 

+38.6 

Effect of deferred taxes on above ad justments -15.44 

Total OCI 31.25 

Total Comprehens ive Income for the per iod under Ind AS -541.47 

4. Property ,plant & equ ipment 

Property, plant & equ ipment compr ises of the fo l lowing: 

Descr ipt ion Fur-
niture 

Land & 
Bui ld-

ings 

Plant & Off ice 
Deve lop-

Bui ld-
ings 

Mach in - Equip-
ment 

Bui ld-
ings 

ery ments ery 
& Other 
Asse ts 

(?) Lacs 

Vehic les 
& Mater ia l 
handl ing 
equ ipments 

TOTAL 

Cost as at Apr i l 1, 
2017 

Addi t ions 

Delet ions 

Cost as at March 
31,2018 

1,113.15 

36.27 

282 .37 

867.05 

970.53 

970.53 

4,586.80 

4586.80 

272.38 

4.84 

277.22 

255.11 

0.66 

1.60 

254.17 

7,197.97 

41.77 

283.97 

6,955.77 

Accumu la ted depre-
ciat ion 
as at Apr i l 1, 2017 

Addi t ions 

- 712.75 4,285.17 238.14 226.91 5,462.97 

Delet ions 

23.83 29.52 7.90 7.32 68.57 

1.59 1.59 

Accumu la ted depre­
ciat ion 
as at March 31 2018 

- 736.58 4314.69 246.04 232.64 5,529.95 

Net Carry ing 
a m o u n t 
as a t March 3 1 , 
2018 

867.05 233.95 272.11 31.18 21.53 1,425.82 
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(?) Lacs 

Descr ipt ion 

Land & 
Deve lop-
ment 

Bui ld­
ings 

Plant & 
Mach in ­
ery 

Fur-
niture 
Off ice 
Equip-
ments 
& O the r 
Asse ts 

Vehic les 
& Mater ia l 
handl ing 
Equip-
ments 

TOTAL 

Cost as at Apr i l 1, 
2016 

915.20 923.53 4,577.05 270.50 271 .16 6,957.44 

Addi t ions 197.95 47.00 9.75 1.88 0.00 256 .58 

Delet ions - - - - 16.05 16.05 

Cost as at March 
3 1 , 2017 

1,113.15 970.53 4,586.80 272.38 255.11 7,197.97 

Accumu la ted depre­
ciat ion 
as at Apr i l 1 , 2016 

- 690 .53 4,246.88 220.13 230.31 5,387.85 

Addi t ions 22.22 38.29 18.01 11.68 90.20 

Delet ions 15.08 15.08 

Accumu la ted depre­
ciat ion 
as at March 31 ,2017 

- 712.75 4,285.17 238.14 226.91 5,462.97 

Net Carrying 
a m o u n t 
as a t March 3 1 , 
2017 

1,113.15 257.78 301.63 34.24 28.20 1,735.00 

5 CAPITAL W O R K IN P R O G R E S S (?) Lacs 

P A R T I C U L A R S As at 

March 31,2018 

A s at 

March 31,2017 

A C W I P 924.16 997.67 

TOTAL 924.16 997.67 
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6 Non Current Investments 

Non Current investments compr ises 
of: 

(?) Lacs 

P A R T I C U L A R S A s at 
March 3 1 , 
2018 

A s at 
March 3 1 , 
2017 

A s at 
Apr i l 1 , 
2016 

(a) Investments carr ied at fair 
value th rough OCI 

(i) In Equity share quoted and fully 
paid up: 

Bank of Baroda -30,000 Equity 
shares of Rs. 2 each 

42.69 51.89 43.80 

ii) In Equity shares unquoted and 
fully paid up 

Kera la Enviro Infrastructure Ltd 
-1,75,000 ( Note -1) 
Equity shares of Rs.10 each 

17.50 17.50 17.50 

Total investments m e a s u r e d at fair 
value th rough OCI 

60.19 69.39 61.30 

(b) Investments measured at cost : 

(i) In Equity shares of Assoc ia te 
C o m p a n y unquoted , fully paid up: 

Kerala Rare Earths and Minerals Ltd 
(KREML) : Note 2 below 

(1)Share Capi ta l 1.00 1.00 1.00 

(2)Share Appl icat ion money pending 
al lotment 

1,360.26 1,360.26 1,360.26 

1,361.26 1,361.26 1,361.26 

(ii) In Society - Unquoted 

C M R L Employes Co-operat ive Soc i ­
ety 

1.00 1.00 1.00 

Total investments m e a s u r e d at 
Cost 

1,362.26 1,362.26 1,362.26 

TOTAL 1,422.45 1,431.65 1,423.56 

Aggrega te amoun t o f quoted invest­
ments & market value 

42.69 51.89 43.80 

Aggrega te provis ion for d imuni t ion in 
value of investments 

0.00 0.00 0.00 
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Note 1: The C o m p a y KEIL has accumula ted losses as at March 31 ,2017. No provision 
for d imuni t ion in value th rough OCI has been cons idered by the management . The Fair 
va lue is based on Level 3 and is expected to be the same as cost 

Note 2: Share appl icat ion money of K R E M L is still pending for a l lo tment s ince the K R E M L 
has not obta ined mining lease f rom Kerala government and the capital s t ructure is not f i ­
nal ised. The managemen t is hopefu l for a solut ion in this matter and consider ing the high 
fair valuat ion expected on the mining rights and due to absence of audi ted accounts fair 
valuat ion and equity based consol idat ion is not cons idered at present. 

7 Deferred Tax assets Balances 

Deferred tax balances consist o f the 
fo l lowing: 

(?) Lacs 

P A R T I C U L A R S A s at 
March 3 1 , 
2018 

A s at 
March 3 1 , 
2017 

A s at 
Apr i l 1 , 
2016 

(i) Deferred tax assets : 

Depreciat ion on Fixed Assets 87.91 107.70 124.88 

Carry Forward loss under IT Ac t 1961 1,999.78 2,066.13 1,828.66 

Others 12.15 10.16 

A 2,099.84 2,183.99 1,953.54 

(i) Deferred tax Asset /Liabi l i ty : 

Fair va luat ion at FVTOCI (12.42) (15.46) (12.79) 

Remeasu remen t of def ined benefi t 
plans 

15.75 (12.77) 

B 3.33 (28.23) (12.79) 

Deferred tax assets (net) (A-B) 2,103.17 2,155.76 1,940.75 

8 Other Assets (?) Lacs 

Other assets consists of the fo l ­
lowing: 

(i) Other Non Current Asse ts Cons id ­
ered Good 

P A R T I C U L A R S A s at 
March 3 1 , 
2018 

A s at 
March 3 1 , 
2017 

A s at 
Apr i l 1 , 
2016 

(a) Capi ta l Advances for land 437.44 437.44 613.44 

(b) Capi ta l advance for plant & ma­
chinery 

9.86 10.26 9.86 

(c) Vehicle advance 10.00 10.00 10.00 
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(d) Gratui ty Advance - 41.47 -

(e) Deposi ts 49.32 49.33 46.65 

506.62 548.50 679.95 

(ii) Other Current Asse ts Cons id ­
ered G o o d 

(?) Lacs 

P A R T I C U L A R S A s at 
March 3 1 , 
2018 

A s at 
March 3 1 , 
2017 

A s at 
Apri l 1 , 
2016 

(a) Advances to Suppl iers 74.94 78.42 56.57 

(b) Advance to emp loyees 17.53 4.67 5.40 

( c) Prepaid Expenses 15.75 13.98 14.71 

(d) KVAT deposi t 5.47 5.47 5.47 

(e) Indirect taxes recoverable 939.99 749.90 520.31 

(f) Other Loans 94.63 72.58 65.50 

TOTAL 1,148.31 925.02 667.96 

9. Inventor ies 

Inventor ies consists of the fo l lowing: (?) Lacs 

P A R T I C U L A R S A s at 
March 3 1 , 
2018 

A s at 
March 3 1 , 
2017 

A s at 
Apri l 1 , 
2016 

(a) Raw Mater ia ls 3,014.23 2,526.18 5,976.48 

(b) F in ished goods 3,402.88 1,217.50 1,036.92 

(c)Stores spares consumab les and 
packing mater ia ls 

214 .68 228.31 222.88 

(d)Work in progress 250 .44 180.99 208.74 

(e) Others - fue l , chemica ls 24.65 35.00 62.56 

TOTAL 6,906.88 4,187.98 7,507.58 

10 Trade Recievables (?) Lacs 

(Unsecured , cons idered good) 

Trade receivables consist of the fo l lowing: 

P A R T I C U L A R S A s at 
March 3 1 , 
2018 

A s at 
March 3 1 , 
2017 

A s at 
Apr i l 1 , 
2016 

(a) Cons idered good 1,415.71 801.28 849.30 

(b) Cons idered doubt fu l - - -
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1,415.71 801.28 849.30 

(c)Less A l lowance for doubt fu l debts - - -

TOTAL 1,415.71 801.28 849.30 

1 1 . Cash and cash equiva lents (?) Lacs 

Cash and cash equiva lents consists 
of the fo l lowing: 

P A R T I C U L A R S A s at 
March 3 1 , 
2018 

A s at 
March 3 1 , 
2017 

A s at 
Apri l 1 , 
2016 

(i) Ba lances wi th banks 

Current account 3.69 4.67 6.17 

(ii) Cash on hand 2.87 10.50 11.60 

TOTAL 6.56 15.17 17.77 

12 Other Balance wi th Banks (?) Lacs 

Other balance wi th banks consists of 
the fo l lowing: 

P A R T I C U L A R S A s at 
March 3 1 , 
2018 

A s at 
March 3 1 , 
2017 

A s at 
Apri l 1 , 
2016 

(i) Marg in money accounts for Bank 
guaran tee /LC 

15.88 97.84 265.75 

(ii) Unc la imed Div idend account 62 .26 67.20 73.72 

TOTAL 78.14 165.04 339.47 

13 Current Tax Assets ( net) (?) Lacs 

Current tax assets ( net) consists of 
the fo l lowing: 

P A R T I C U L A R S A s at 
March 3 1 , 
2018 

A s at 
March 3 1 , 
2017 

A s at 
Apri l 1 , 
2016 

(i) T D S Receivab le 3.46 0.85 5.10 

3.46 0.85 5.10 
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14 S H A R E CAPITAL (?) Lacs 

P A R T I C U L A R S A s a t 

March 3 1 , 2018 
A s a t 

March 3 1 , 2017 
A s a t 

Apri l 1 , 2016 

Author ised Capital 

1,00,00,000 equity 
shares of Rs.10/ -
each 

1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 

Issued, Subscr ibed and Paid up Capital 

78,30,000 Fully paid 
up Equity Shares of 
Rs.10 each 

783.00 783.00 783.00 

Addi t ional infor­
mat ion : 

a )Reconci l ia t ion of 
n u m b e r of shares 

A s a t 

March 3 1 , 2018 
A s a t 

March 3 1 , 2017 
A s a t 

Apri l 1 , 2016 

Open ing Ba lance 783.00 783.00 783.00 

Changes dur ing the 
year 

- - -

Closing Balance 783.00 783.00 783.00 

The company has only one class of equity shares having a par va lue of Rs 10 each 

S H A R E S I N T H E C O M P A N Y H E L D B Y E A C H S H A R E H O L D E R H O L D I N G M O R E 
T H A N 5 % S H A R E S A R E S H O W N B E L O W : 

N A M E N O O F 
S H A R E S 

% OF 
SHARES 

N O O F 
S H A R E S 

% OF 
SHARES 

N O OF 
S H A R E S 

% OF 
S H A R E S 

A s at 
March 3 1 , 
2018 

A s at 31st 
March 
2017 

A s at 
Apr i l 1 , 
2016 

1.Dr.S N 
Sas idharan 
Kartha 

1,354,518 17 .29% 1,338,585 17 .10% 1,325,848 16 .93% 

2.Mr .Mathew 
M Cher ian 

823,150 1 0 . 5 1 % 823,150 1 0 . 5 1 % 923,150 11.79% 

3.The Kerala 
State Indus-
trial Deve lop-
ment Corpo-
ration Ltd 

1,050,000 1 3 . 4 1 % 1,050,000 1 3 . 4 1 % 1,050,000 1 3 . 4 1 % 
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15 O T H E R E Q U I T Y (?) Lacs 

Other Equity consists of the fo l lowing 

P A R T I C U L A R S A s a t 

March 3 1 , 2018 
A s a t 

March 3 1 , 2017 

R E S E R V E S A N D S U R ­
P L U S 

(a) Capi ta l Reserve 0.44 0.44 

(b) Investment Subs idy 15.00 15.00 

(c) Genera l Reserve 2,206.91 2,206.91 

(d)Reta ined Earnings 

(i) Open ing Ba lance 3,676.06 4,222.95 

(ii) Profit / (Loss) for the 
year 

133.93 (572.72) 

(iii) Other Comprehens ive 
income 

(57.75) 25.83 

3,752.24 3,676.06 

Other Reserves 

(e) FVTOCI 

(i) Open ing Ba lance 31.33 25.91 

(ii) OCI for the Year (6.16) 5.42 

25.17 31.33 

TOTAL 5,999.76 5,929.74 

16 B O R R O W I N G S (?) Lacs 

Bor rowings consist o f the fo l low ing : 

P A R T I C U L A R S A s at 
March 3 1 , 

2018 

A s at 
31st March 

2017 

A s at 
1st Apr i l , 

2016 

(i) Long te rm Borrowings 

(a) Bank of Baroda Corporate 
Loan - Note 1 

548.74 1,032.04 1,530.45 

(b) Bank of Baroda Term Loan -
Note 2 

- - 17.40 

(c)Less : Upfront & other fees 
paid for (a) & (b) 

- - -

TOTAL 548.74 1,032.04 1,547.85 
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(ii) Short t e r m Bor rowings 

(a) Cash credi t /Packing credit 
f rom B a n k o f Ba roda , A luva 
against hypothecat ion of raw 
mater ia ls ,stock in process and 
f in ished goods and stores spares 
consumab les . 

2 ,798.08 3,034.33 3,063.52 

TOTAL 2,798.08 3,034.33 3,063.52 

Note : 1 Bank of Baroda Corporate loan w a s sanct ioned on 03/01/2014 and repayable in 72 

monthly insta lments of Rs. 41.60 lacs and at a sacnt ioned interest rate of 12 .40%. 

Note : 2 Bankof Baroda Term loan w a s sanct ioned on 19/02/2009 and repayable in 72 

monthly insta lments of Rs. 4.30 lacs and at a sanct ioned interest rate of 12 .40%. 

S E C U R I T Y : 1. The above two Bank of Baroda Corpor te and te rm loans are secured by 

par ipassu charge by w a y of 

1. First charge by w a y of equi table mor tgage of 21 .35 Acres of land in Survey Nos.92/4A, 

92/4B,97/1A part, 9 7 / 1 B 1 , 1B2, 1B3,97 /2B2, 9 7 / 3 - 1 , 97/3-2 part, 98/1A part, 98 /1B part ,95/4 

Part ,95/6 Part, 95/7 part, 9 6 / 1 - 1 , 96/1-2,96/2, 96/3A part, 96 /3B part, 96/4Part , 96/5-1part , 

97/1B-3 part, 97/2A-1 part, 98/1A Par t ,132/11-A,132/12,132/13,95/3 part, 95/5 part, 97/3 

part 135/3B,135/2B, 135/2A,135/1 at Parur Taluk, Kadungal lur Vi l lage together wi th bui ld-

ing, plant and mach inery and movab les(save and except inventor ies of all nature, book 

debts and other current assets wh ich fo rm part o f the pr imary secur i ty towards the work ing 

capital advance in the ordinary course of business) including movab le machinery, mach in-

ery spares , tools and accessor ies present and future. 

S E C U R I T Y : 2. The above two Bank of Baroda Corpor te and te rm loans are secured by 

personal guaran tee of Dr S.N.Sas idharan Kartha , Manag ing Director 
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17 O T H E R F I N A N C I A L LIABILITIES (?) Lacs 

(i) Other Current Financia l Liabil i t ies 

P A R T I C U L A R S A s a t 

March 3 1 , 2018 
A s a t 

31st March 2017 
A s a t 

1st Apri l 2016 

(a) Current ma-
turit ies of long te rm 
debt 

499 .20 516.78 551.60 

(b) Unc la imed div i ­
dends 

62 .26 67.20 73.72 

(c) Capi ta l credi tors 43.87 40.00 48.60 

TOTAL 605.33 623.98 673.92 

18 Provis ions (?) Lacs 

Provis ions consist of the fo l lowing: 

(i) Long Term Provis ions 

P A R T I C U L A R S A s a t 

March 3 1 , 2018 
A s a t 

31st March 2017 
A s a t 

1st Apri l 2016 

(a) Provis ion for 
Employee benef i ts 

136.81 71.09 38.31 

TOTAL 136.81 71.09 38.31 

(ii) Short Term Provis ions (?) Lacs 

P A R T I C U L A R S A s a t 

March 3 1 , 2018 
A s a t 

31st March 2017 
A s a t 

1st Apri l 2016 

(a) Provis ion for 
Employee benef i ts 

7.21 5.05 2.29 

(b)Other Provis ions 11.47 119.53 57.71 

TOTAL 18.68 124.58 60.00 

19 Other Current Liabil it ies (?) Lacs 

P A R T I C U L A R S A s a t 

March 3 1 , 2018 
A s a t 

March 3 1 , 2017 
A s a t 

Apri l 1 , 2016 

(a) Advance re-
ceived f rom cus tom-
ers 

13.13 8.51 10.84 

(b) Indirect tax 
payable and other 
statutory l iabil it ies 

48.40 97.40 67.61 
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(c) Other Liabil i t ies 1,966.76 51.37 48.85 

TOTAL 2028.29 157.28 127.30 

20 Current tax liability (net) (?) Lacs 

Current Tax Liabil i ty ( net) consist of the fo l lowing: 

P A R T I C U L A R S A s a t 

March 3 1 , 2018 
A s a t 

March 3 1 , 2017 
A s a t 

Apri l 1 , 2016 

(a) Provis ion for 
Income Tax 

- - -

(b) Less: T D S re­
ceivable 

- - -

Less: Advance Tax 
Paid 

- - -

TOTAL - - -

2 1 S A L E O F P R O D U C T S (?) Lacs 

Sale of products compr ises of the fo l lowing 

P A R T I C U L A R S For the year ended 
March 3 1 , 2018 

For the year ended 
March 3 1 , 2017 

(a) Synthet ic Ruti le -Expor t 14,590.57 12,835.60 

(b)Synthet ic Ruti le - Local 217.67 128.77 

(c) Ferr ic Chlor ide -Expor t 1,267.89 1,749.79 

(d )Ferr ic Chlor ide- Local 111.16 124.09 

(e) Ferrous Chlor ide 26.96 28.19 

(f) Iron Hydrox ide -Cemox 99.40 16.82 

(g) Recovered T iO2 66.81 23.62 

(h) Recovered Upgraded I lmenite 27.37 

TOTAL 16,407.83 14,906.88 

S e g m e n t informat ion: C o m p a n y operates in one segment . Cus tomers generat ing rev­
enue more than 1 0 % of sa les is Rs. 10,729.05 lakhs (Previous year 10385.53 lakhs) 

22 O T H E R I N C O M E 

Other Income compr ises of the fo l lowing (?) Lacs 

P A R T I C U L A R S For the year ended 
March 3 1 , 2018 

For the year ended 
March 3 1 , 2017 

(a) Interest on Bank Deposi ts 7.46 5.41 

(b) Sale of I lmenite Tail ings 3.64 3.16 

(c) MEIS License sales 51.08 3.71 
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(d) Div idend income 0.61 0.25 

(e) Exchange rate di f ference on sales 
and import bill real isat ion etc 

35.07 42.83 

(f) Profit on sale of vehic le 0.19 0.03 

TOTAL 98.05 55.39 

23 Cost of mater ia l c o n s u m e d (?) Lacs 

Cost of mater ia l compr ises of the fo l lowing 

P A R T I C U L A R S For the year ended 
March 3 1 , 2018 

For the year ended 
March 3 1 , 2017 

Open ing s tock of raw mater ia l 2 ,526.17 5,976.47 

Add :Purchases 9,434.13 3,745.15 

11,960.30 9,721.62 

Less:Clos ing Stock of raw mater ia l 3,014.23 2,526.17 

TOTAL 8,946.07 7,195.45 

24 C h a n g e s in inventor ies of f inished goods , 
work in progress & stock- in-trade (?) Lacs 

Changes in inventor ies of f in ished goods , w o r k in progrss and stock- in- t rade compr ises 
of the fo l lowing 

P A R T I C U L A R S For the year ended 
March 3 1 , 2018 

For the year ended 
March 3 1 , 2017 

(i) Inventor ies ( at close) 

Fin ished goods 3,402.88 1,167.04 

Work in progress 250.44 180.99 

3,653.32 1,348.03 

(ii) Inventor ies ( at commencemen t ) 

Fin ished goods 1,167.04 1,036.92 

Work in progress 180.99 208.74 

1,348.03 1,245.66 

TOTAL 2,305.29 102.37 
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25 E M P L O Y E E C O S T S (?) Lacs 

Employee Costs compr ises of the fo l lowing 

P A R T I C U L A R S For the year ended 
March 3 1 , 2018 

For the year ended 
March 3 1 , 2017 

(a) Salary & a l lowances 1637.78 1550.28 

(b) Contr ibut ion to Provident Fund & other 
funds 

134.84 128.52 

(c) Staff Wel fare Expenses 220.79 220.37 

TOTAL 1993.41 1899.17 

26. F inance Costs (?) Lacs 

F inance costs compr ises of the fo l lowing: 

P A R T I C U L A R S For the year ended 
March 3 1 , 2018 

For the year ended 
March 3 1 , 2017 

(a) Interest on te rm loans 0.27 5.10 

(b) Interest on Cash Credi t /Packing Credi t 386.25 396.42 

(c ) Interest on unsecured loan 9.36 0.00 

(d) Interest on Corporate Loan 173.45 236.16 

TOTAL 569.33 637.68 

27 Other Expenses (?) Lacs 

P A R T I C U L A R S For the year ended 
March 3 1 , 2018 

For the year ended 
March 3 1 , 2017 

(i) Manufactur ing expenses 

(a) Power and Water 286.33 250.79 

(b) Fuel 1,188.30 925.26 

(c) Chemica ls (ETP) & Sludge handl ing 
charges 

1,953.09 1,647.78 

(d) S to res ,Spares ,Consumab les and 
Packing Mater ia ls 

844.35 851.27 

(e) Repai rs to bui lding 126.11 124.90 

(f) Repai rs to others 123.35 120.67 

(g) Repai rs to plant and machinery 227.55 208.80 

(h) Fore ign Exchange loss on import bill 
real isat ion 

- 26.28 

TOTAL 4,749.08 4,155.75 



C O C H I N M I N E R A L S A N D RUTILE L IMITED 97 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(ii) Sel l ing and Distr ibut ion Expenses 

(a) Shipp ing t ranspor tat ion and freight and 
forward ing, including Terminal Handl ing 
Charges 

1,048.96 896.03 

(b) Export Duty 359.60 311.48 

(c) Sales Commiss ion 57.06 33.53 

(d) Sa les Promot ion Expenses 373.77 306.29 

TOTAL 1,839.39 1,547.33 

(iii) Establ ishment Expenses 

(a) Laboratory and Factory genera l ex­
penses 

13.39 14.27 

(b) Insurance 17.31 22.16 

(c) Rates & Taxes 24.69 11.81 

(d) Postage, Telephone & Telex 9.60 9.67 

(e) Print ing & Stat ionery 8.22 6.87 

(f) Travel l ing Expenses 60.43 58.85 

(g) Audi tor 's Remunera t ion 
: Statutory audit 

1.12 1.12 

: Tax Aud i t 0.38 0.38 

(h) Director 's sitt ing fee 54.50 52.50 

(i) Legal & Profess ional Charges 34.06 31.71 

(j) Adver t i sement expenses 18.94 15.22 

(k) Subsr ipt ion & Contr ibut ion 9.48 9.94 

(l) Share t ransfer expenses 2.56 1.94 

(m) Bank charges 145.88 81.32 

(n) A G M Expenses 5.27 4.78 

(o) S tock Exchange listing fee 2.50 2.00 

(p) Research & Deve lopment expenses 6.50 3.69 

(q) ISO Expenses 0.31 0.30 

TOTAL 415.14 328.53 

G R A N D TOTAL 7,003.61 6,031.61 
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28 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (?) Lacs 

Accounting Classification and Fair Value 

(a) Financial assets and l iabil i t ies as at March 3 1 , 2018 

PARTICU­
LARS 

Fair 
value 
th rough 
P&L 

Fair 
value 
th rough 
OCI ' 

Amor t ised 
Cost 

Total Carrying 
value 

Assets Carry­
ing 
value 

LEV­
EL 1 

LEVEL 
2 

LEVEL 3 Carrying 
value 

LEVEL 
1 

LEVEL 
2 

LEVEL 3 

Trade Re­
ceivables 

1,415.71 1,415.71 

Cash 
& cash 
equivalents 

6.56 6.56 

Other bal­
ance with 
banks 

78.14 78.14 

Non current 
invest­
ments 

60.19 42.69 17.50 1,362.26 1,422.45 

TOTAL - - - - 60.19 42.69 - 17.50 2,862.67 2,922.86 

Liabi l t ies 

Trade 
Payables 

3,022.59 3,022.59 

Borrowings 3,346.82 3,346.82 

Other 
Payables 

605.33 605.33 

TOTAL - - - - - - - - 6,974.74 6,974.74 
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(a) Financial assets and l iabil i t ies as at March 31,2017 (?) Lacs 

PARTICU­
LARS 

Fair 
value 
th rough 
P&L 

Fair 
value 
th rough 
OCI 

Amor t ised 
Cost 

Total Carrying 
value 

Assets Carry­
ing 
value 

LEV-
E L I 

LEVEL 
2 

LEVEL 3 Carrying 
value 

LEVEL 
1 

LEVEL 
2 

LEVEL 3 

Trade Re­
ceivables 

801.28 801.28 

Cash 
& cash 
equivalents 

15.17 15.17 

Other bal­
ance with 
banks 

165.04 165.04 

Non current 
invest­
ments 

69.39 51.89 17.50 1,362.26 1,431.65 

TOTAL - - - - 69.39 51.89 - 17.50 2,343.75 2,413.14 

Liabi l t ies 

Trade 
Payables 

1,207.88 1,207.88 

Borrowings 4,066.37 4,066.37 

Other 
Payables 

623.98 623.98 

TOTAL - - - - - - - - 5,898.23 5,898.23 
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(b) Financial assets and l iabil i t ies as at Apr i l 1, 2016 (?) Lacs 

PARTICU­
LARS 

Fair 
value 
th rough 
P&L 

Fair 
value 
th rough 
OCI 

Amor t ised 
Cost 

Total Carrying 
value 

Assets Carry­
ing 
value 

LEV­
EL 1 

LEVEL 
2 

LEVEL 3 Carrying 
value 

LEVEL 
1 

LEVEL 
2 

LEVEL 3 

Trade Re­
ceivables 

849.30 849.30 

Cash 
& cash 
equivalents 

17.77 17.77 

Other bal­
ance with 
banks 

339.47 339.47 

Non current 
invest­
ments 

61.30 43.80 17.50 1,362.26 1,423.56 

TOTAL - - - - 61.30 43.80 - 17.50 2,568.80 2,630.10 

Liabil t ies 

Trade 
Payables 

3,233.59 3,233.59 

Borrowings 4,611.37 4,611.37 

Other 
financial 
liabilities 

673.92 673.92 

TOTAL - - - - - - - - 8,518.88 8,518.88 

MEASUREMENT OF FAIR VALUES 

Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices ( unadjusted) in act ive markets for identical assets or l iabi l i t ies. - Investments in equity 
shares (Sch 6(a) (i) -Quoted Market price) 

Level 2: Inputs other than quotes prices included wi th in Level 1that are observable for the asset or l iabil i ty either direct ly or 
indirect ly 

Level 3: Others : Unquoted equi ty shares @ FVTOCI - please refer to Sch 6 (Note-1) 



C O C H I N M I N E R A L S A N D RUTILE L IMITED 101 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
29 R E L A T E D PARTY T R A N S A C T I O N S 

(i) List of related 
parties 

Relat ionship 

(a) M/s Sach Ex­
ports Pvt Ltd 

Part ies wi th signi f i ­
cant inf luence 

D E S I G N A T I O N RELATION 

(b) Dr. S.N.Sasi -
dharan Kartha 

Manag ing Director Promoter 

(c) Shri Saran S 
Kartha 

Joint Manag ing 
Director 

Key Manager ia l 
Personne l (KMP) 

(d) Shri P.Suresh 
Kumar 

Chie f GM (F) & CS Key Manager ia l 
Personne l (KMP) 

(e) Shri K.S.Suresh 
Kumar 

C F O Key Manager ia l 
Personne l (KMP) 

(f) Kerala Rare 
Earths and Minerals 
Ltd 

Assoc ia te C o m p a n y 

(ii) Transact ions wi th related part ies (?) Lacs 

P A R T I C U L A R S 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 

(a) S U P P L Y OF 
G O O D S 

M/s Sach Expor ts 
Pvt Ltd 

NIL 36.79 65.83 

(b) Sale of Land: 
Dr. S N Sas idharan 
Kartha 

282.37 

(c) Payments to 
KMP: Employee 
benef i ts 

Dr .S.N.Sas idharan 
Kartha :Salary 

120.00 120.00 120.00 

Contr ibut ion to PF 14.40 14.40 14.40 

Shri Saran S Kartha 
: Salary 

96.00 96.00 96.00 

Contr ibut ion to PF 11.52 11.52 11.52 

Shri P.Suresh 
Kumar : Salary 

18.99 20 .66 20.10 

Contr ibut ion to PF 1.31 1.31 1.30 
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Shri K.S.Suresh 
Kumar : Salary 

10.76 10.84 9.85 

Contr ibut ion to PF 0.45 0.45 0.45 

Sitt ing fee paid to 
di rectors 

54.50 52.5 60.50 

Related party t ransact ions are va lued at Fair Value 

3 0 C O M M I T M E N T S A N D C O N T I G E N C I E S 

Commi tmen ts and cont igencies compr ises of the fo l lowing: in lakhs 

P A R T I C U L A R S 

(i) Bank guaran tees 

(a) Bank of Baroda 

(b) Bill d iscounted 
not matur ing 

2017-18 

28.28 

622.47 

2016-17 

98.95 

220.96 

2015-16 

113.83 

335.89 

(c) Ass t Commiss ioner , Kerala VAT has raised a d e m a n d of ?11.50 lacs for AY 2008- '09 
for wh ich appea l has been f i led wi th DC (A) 

3 1 . Dues to Micro, Smal l and Med ium Enterpr ises 

Based on the informat ion avai lable wi th the managemen t there are no dues to micro, 
smal l and med ium enterpr ises in respect of w h o m informat ion is to be d isc losed under 
the Micro, Smal l and Med ium Enterpr ises Deve lopment Act 2006 

3 2 . 1 . Earnings in fore ign Currency (?) Lacs 

Part iculars 2017-18 2016-17 

F O B Value of Expor ts 15527.57 14040.70 

32.2 E A R N I N G S PER S H A R E (EPS) : (?) Lacs 

Part iculars 2017-18 Mar-2016-17 

Profi t /(Loss) attr ibutable to 
equity holders 

133.93 -572.72 

Weigh ted Average number 
of equity shares used for 
comput ing Earn ing Per 
Share (Basic) 

78,30,000 78,30,000 

Basic earn ings/ (loss) Per 
Share 

1.71 -7.31 

Di luted earn ings/ (loss) Per 
Share 

1.71 -7.31 

Face value per share 10 10 
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33. F I N A N C I A L RISK M A N A G E M E N T O B J E C T I V E S A N D POLIC IES: 

The f inancia l l iabilit ies of the C o m p a n y compr ise of loans and borrowings, t rade and other 

payables wi th the main purpose of f inanc ing the Company ' s act ivi t ies. The f inancia l assets 

of the C o m p a n y compr ise of Investments, receivables, loans and advances and cash and 

cash equiva lents . The C o m p a n y is exposed to market risk, credit risk and l iquidity risk. 

This is managed by the Company ' s managemen t t e a m under gu idance of the Board of 

Directors. This t e a m ensures that the f inancial risk activi t ies are governed by appropr iate 

policies and procedures and f inancial r isks are ident i f ied, measured and managed in ac­

cordance wi th the Company ' s pol icies and risk object ives. 

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees pol icies for manag ing these risks as s u m m a ­

rised below. 

a. Market Risk : Market risk is the risk that the fair va lue of future cash flows of a 

f inancial inst rument wi l l f luctuate because of change in market price and compr ises of 

Interest rate risk, Cur rency risk and Other r isks. Financial inst ruments affected by market 

risk includes loans and borrowings , depos i ts and interest on deposi ts . 

(i) Interest Rate Risk : Risk that the fair va lue of future cash f lows wil l f luctuate due 

to changes in market interest rates and primari ly affects the long te rm debt obl iga-

t ions of the C o m p a n y wh ich is based on M C L R and reset annual ly. As per IND AS 

interest is charged as per Effective Interest Method based on the IRR of the loan. 

(ii) Foreign cur rency risk : C o m p a n y has no borrowings in foreign currency. 

(iii) Other Risk The other risk factors are the unpredictable si tuat ion in the availabi l i ty 

and price of i lmenite and Hydrochlor ic ac id , the major and crit ical raw mater ia ls of 

the company. 

The d e m a n d and volat i le nature of pr ices of Synthet ic Ruti le and foreign exchange 

f luctuat ions also have an impact. 

b. Credit Risk : Risk of the counterpar ty not meet ing its obl igat ions if a cus tomer or 

counterpar ty fails to meet its contractual obl igat ions and ar ises principal ly f rom the C o m -

pany's t rade receivables and loans and advances . The carry ing amounts of f inancia l instru-

ments represent the m a x i m u m exposure . 

The Company ' s exposure to credit risk is inf luenced mainly by the character ist ics of each 

cus tomer and the geography in wh ich i t operates. Credi t risk is managed by credit ap-

provals, establ ishing credit l imits and cont inuously moni tor ing the credit wor th iness of its 

customers to wh ich the C o m p a n y grants credit te rms in the normal course of its business. 

The Company ' s expor t sales are backed by letters of credit. 

The C o m p a n y moni tors each loans and advance g iven and makes any provision wheneve r 

required. 

Based on prior exper ience and assessment of current bus iness env i ronment managemen t 

bel ieves there is no requ i rement for any credit provision and there is no signi f icant concen­

trat ion of credit risk. 



C O C H I N M I N E R A L S A N D RUTILE L IMITED 104 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
The ageing of t rade receivables that we re not impaired are as fo l lows: (? in lakhs) 

P A R T I C U L A R S As a t March 
3 1 , 2 0 1 8 

As at March 
3 1 , 2017 

As a t Apr i l 1 , 
2016 

(a) Cons idered good 
1,415.71 801.27 849.30 

(b) Cons idered doubt fu l - - -

1,415.71 801.27 849.30 

c. Liquidity risk: The C o m p a n y manages it's l iquidity risk th rough a mix of debt and 

equi ty ,moreover the revenue generat ion meets fund requi rement for operat ing 

activit ies. The matur i ty profi le of the f inancial l iabil it ies are as fo l lows: 

(?) Lacs 

I tem Carry ing 

a m o u n t 

Total Less than 

one year 

As a t March 31 ,2018 

Borrowings 2798 .08 2798.08 2798.08 

Trade Payab les 3022.59 3022.59 3022.59 

Others 2652 .30 2652.30 2652.30 

As at March 31,2017 

Borrowings 3034.33 3034.33 3034.33 

Trade Payab les 1207.88 1207.88 1207.88 

Others 905.84 905.84 905.84 

As a t Apr i l 1 , 2016 

Borrowings 3063.52 3063.52 3063.52 

Trade Payab les 3233.59 3233.59 3233.59 

Others 861.22 861.22 861.22 

34. CAPITAL M A N A G E M E N T 

For the purpose of Company ' s capital management , capital includes share capital and 
other equity wi th the pr imary object ive of increasing shareho lder va lue. The C o m p a n y man­
ages its capital s t ructure in light of changes in economic condi t ions and requi rements of the 
f inancial covenants th rough a mix of debt and equity. 

The C o m p a n y moni tors capi tal using the adjusted net debt to capital ratio as below: 
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(?) Lacs 

Part iculars A s a t March 3 1 , 
2018 

As a t March 3 1 , 
2017 

As a t Apri l 1 , 
2016 

Non-current Bor­
rowing 

548.74 1032.04 1547.85 

Current borrowing 2798.08 3034.33 3063.52 

Current matur i ty of 
long te rm debt 

499.20 516.78 551.60 

G R O S S D E B T 3846.02 4583.15 5162.97 

Less: Cash and 
cash equivalent 

6.56 15.17 17.77 

Less: Other Ba l ­
ances wi th banks 

78.14 165.04 339.47 

A D J : N E T D E B T 3761.32 4402 .94 4805.73 

Total Equity 6782.76 6712 .74 7254.21 

Adj Net Debt to 
equity ratio 

0.55 0.65 0.66 

35. The f igures appear ing in f inancial s ta tements are rounded off to the nearest ?. in Lakhs. 
Previous year 's f igures have been regrouped / reclassi f ied whereve r necessary to corre­
spond wi th the current year 's classi f icat ion / d isc losure. 

Place : Aluva 
Date : 29.05.2018 
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